
Meeting Minutes SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, June 2nd, 2009.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Steven Kessler, Chairman presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Loretta Taylor, Vice-Chairperson




John Bernard, Board Member (absent)




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member




Ivan Kline, Board Member




Susan Todd, Board Member 



Robert Foley, Board Member 


ALSO PRESENT:




Edward Vergano, Department of Technical Services 




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney




Jeffrey Rothfeder, CAC 




Chris Kehoe, Planning Department  

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA BY MAJORITY VOTE
Mr. Steven Kessler stated we have one addition to the agenda this evening it’s Planning Board 25-93 the Roundtop application in Montrose.  We will put that at the end of correspondence as letter g, can I please have a motion to add that to the agenda, moved, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”  



*



*



*




ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF APRIL 7, 2009
Mr. Steven Kessler asked for a motion with all in favor saying “aye.” 
Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question I have corrections I’m passing over.
RESOLUTIONS (NONE)
Mr. Steven Kessler read the following from the agenda:

PB 16-99    a.
Letter dated February 9, 2009 from Tim Hetrick of the Hollowbrook Golf Club located on Oregon Road requesting that the required number of water samplings be reduced from 3 a year plus one storm event to 2 a year plus one storm event.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated I will recuse myself from this agenda item.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated Mr. Chairman the consultant from Leggette, Brashears and Graham John Benvegna is not here yet, you may want to skip this and come back.



*



*



*




PUBLIC HEARINGS (ADJOURNED)

Mr. Steven Kessler read the following from the agenda:

PB 16-06    a.
Public Hearing: Application of Congregation Yeshiva Ohr Hameir for Site Development Plan Approval and a Special Permit and for Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for the construction of a new dormitory building with a classroom wing, the renovation or demolition of existing buildings on the site, and other related site improvements including improvements to the access drive, signage, landscaping, utilities, lighting and a sanitary sewer connection located on a 37.32 acre parcel of property at 141 Furnace Woods Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Proposed Site Plan prepared for Yeshiva Ohr Hameir” latest revision dated November 22, 2006 prepared by Ralph Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Proposed Renovations” prepared by KG&D Architects, latest revision dated October 19, 2006 (THIS PUBLIC HEARING WILL BE ADJOURNED UNTIL THE SEPTEMBER 1, 2009 PLANNING BOARD MEETING).
Mr. Steven Kessler stated I should note that there is an item – a secondary application from the Yeshiva that we will be addressing at the end of the evening under “new business” the last item under “new business” we will wait to see what the presentation is on this new application.  If there’s no objection, Mr. Foley?
Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion that we adjourn this to the September 1 meeting, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

Mr. Steven Kessler stated our next public hearing is also an adjourned public hearing.  

Mr. Steven Kessler read the following from the agenda:

PB 14-06    b.
Public Hearing: Application of Richard Heinzer for Preliminary Plat Approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removal Permits for a 2 lot minor subdivision of a 39,480 sq. ft. parcel of land located on the east side of Crumb Place, approximately 200 feet south of Ogden Avenue, as shown on a 3  page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan Prepared for Richard Heinzer” prepared by Ralph  G. Mastromonaco, P.E. latest revision dated April 22, 2009 and on a 4 page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Conditions Plan” prepared by James DeLalia, RLA, latest revision dated November 17, 2008.
Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Chairman I am recusing myself.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated so noted Mr. Foley.  We did have a site visit this past Sunday.  I think three Board Members were present for the site visit but one of those Board Members is absent this evening.  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I was not at the site inspection.  My partner Brad Schwartz was there with Ralph Mastromonaco.  We were briefed on the site walk.  I’m glad that the Board Members that attended had a chance to see the site, to see the proposed drain and the access points, etc.  I do not want to go backwards and rehash the presentations that we have made over the last couple of years.  We’re here on a two-lot subdivision.  As we mentioned at the last meeting and we wanted to show you at the site, as a result of Mr. Mastromonaco’s efforts and re-design done with my client we were successful in eliminating all disturbance to 30% slopes other than the slopes at the entrance to the site.  We believe that that was a major undertaking and a significant benefit to the Board and those of you who were concerned about disturbance to 30% slopes.  We feel like we’re kind of left with two final issues.  One regarding snow storage and where that would go and I think you saw that out at the site.  Mr. Mastromonaco is here to address that and the second as Mr. Bianchi mentioned during the work session was with regard to some of the walls, the retaining walls on the lower portion of the drawing.  I don’t have a pointer here at the moment.  Mr. DeLalia, our Landscape Architect, was going to be here and present some illustrative drawings, but it looks like he’s been delayed but suffice it to say I think you saw out at the site.  We believe we have the ability to landscape those walls to the satisfaction of the Board and your professional staff and the neighbor who is most closely impacted is on a heavily vegetated lot and we don’t believe we’re going to have an adverse impact on the visual benefits and impact to Ms. Senior and her property.  With regard to the snow storage, we believe we’ve complied with what Ms. Burleson asked for in her last memo.  As you know we re-designed, we’ve created a K-turn, we have an area that Mr. Mastromonaco can explain, where the snow will be stored.  The K-turn allows the Town’s snow removal  vehicles, or snow plows to go down and have the ability to turn around and back out.  Right now that situation effectively exists right now.  In order to plow from Crumb Place past Mr. DeFabio’s driveway on the left hand side or the upper portion of the drawing, and Ms. Senior’s driveway on the right-hand side, the snowplows currently have to come down Crumb Place past those driveways and somehow get out.  By putting in the K-turn area, we’re creating an area no. 1 for snow storage and no. 2 for trucks to turn around.  We think we’re actually improving an existing condition.  I know there were questions raised by the neighbors with regard to fill.  Clearly some amount of fill is going to come in.  It will all be in accordance with the safety standards and protocol that the Town’s Building Department and Engineering require that all contractor’s follow.  We’ve identified how many loads would come in and don’t believe that’s really an issue necessarily before the Board.  We would ask you, obviously, to conduct the public hearing on the most recent revised application.  We appreciate the fact that your Board re-opened the hearing to allow consideration of the most recent modifications.  We hope tonight, you’re in position to close the public hearing and to request the preparation of a resolution. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it’s a public hearing is there anybody that wishes to comment on this application?  Name and address for the record please.

Mr. Mohan Merha presented himself to the Board with address stated as 16 John Dorsey Drive, Cortlandt Manor.  I live on the down side of Crumb Place, on the cul-the-sac where there are four or five houses there.  I was looking through my notes.  It seems this has been going on forever.  April 1st, 2008 when I testified last about issue, and I’m going to repeat it again: we’re concerned about the disturbance, whether it’s 30% more, I’ve reviewed the latest set of drawings as well as what was filed.  The disturbance whether it’s one property or two properties, is two properties 30% more than a single property in terms of 15%, 30% or 30% depending on how you look at it.  But, we’re concerned about disturbing that property in the back there and creating problems on MacGregor Creek.  That is a creek that goes under John Dorsey and goes right behind my property and they’re wetlands there.  I testified to that point last time as well.  Then springtime, that really backs up and there is a tremendous water backlog in the back of our property because of MacGregor Creek flooding out.  Any disturbance to that property or that construction up hill is going to cause problems down side on John Dorsey.  Furthermore, any water coming down in the winter time, John Dorsey in the cul-de-sac is an ice skating rink in the winter time with the ice forming there and so we’re very concerned about disturbance creating up slopes to the properties, the four of the houses.  A couple of my neighbors couldn’t be here tonight asked me to speak on their behalf as well.  Michael Mars and John Dorley.  I urge you to reconsider this.  Please give it careful consideration.  We are strongly opposed to root two properties.  We know that the buyer has the right to build one house on that property, but to squeeze two houses in there, I don’t think is appropriate.  Thank you.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated now when we were on the site visit it seemed that the way that the water would flow on that property is away from John Dorsey Drive, it seemed to be going the other direction the way the slopes seemed to indicate.

Mr. Mohan Merha but my understanding was it was still affect the creek and that’s what we’re concerned about.  The creek itself, it’s a very small creek but during springtime you can see the water gushing underneath John Dorsey and it really it was pointed out to me when I looked at some drawings it is a tremendous water system there underground and any disturbance there could cause dramatic problems in the wetlands right behind our property, there are two houses there I can’t describe the exact locations but there is a tremendous amount of wetlands there and anything that disturbs that whether it’s during construction or later on is going to have major problems.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated yes, Mr. Fischer?
Mr. Andrew Fischer presented himself to the Board and stated I would have to respectfully disagree with what the applicant’s been saying about responding to concerns.  They’ve responded to the Town’s Engineering Consultant’s concerns but there’s a lot of neighbors concerns that have been read into the record over the past many months about this that haven’t been answered including: visual impacts on how these rooftops are going to look from when viewed from John Dorsey or Route 202 area, not to mention to the visual impacts of the immediate neighbor Ms. Senior; they’ve talked about the distance of the wall and I guess within Town Zoning requirements, the location of the wall but not the visual impacts of the houses themselves with the wall.  They also haven’t addressed our concerns about the construction vehicle access to this site, construction vehicle staging, where is this material that they have to bring in, this fill, which I’ve heard numbers, maybe they can speak to exact numbers may have numbers of several hundred yards, 300 cubic yards, to maybe 500, 600 cubic yards of fill to be brought into the site.  I don’t know how many truck loads that comes to.  From people I’ve asked they’re talking about 20 to 30 maybe more truck loads.  Where are these vehicles going to park?  Where are they going to sit and stage as they are trying to get in and out of this site?  How are they going to get up there?  Are they going to reverse, go backwards up Ogden Avenue and go down in reverse on Crumb Place?  Those of you who have been to the site have seen probably it would not be possible without somehow ordering the residents to not park their cars on that street and with only one vehicle being able to get through at a time, it could take how many weeks or months to get all that material up there then they have to compact the fill which means different construction vehicles that can crush it down so that the fill won’t slide down the mountain into MacGregor Brook.  You also haven’t answered our questions about what’s the source of the fill.  Where’s it coming from?  Is it coming from adjacent on the property and what type of material it’s going to be?  How are they going to compact this fill and prove that it’s stable to the satisfaction, to the protection of the people who are downhill from that?  Is there any way to do any baseline testing of MacGregor Brook right now flows looking at the culverts under John Dorsey, Ogden and Taylor Avenue, Conklin Avenue, to see what blockages might be present before any construction ever starts so that if this gets approved and they go forward you would be able to say they did or did not make it worse and hold them accountable or use performance bonds if needed.  But, if there’s no wording in your language of approval this, but I’m asking you if you’re going to approve it put some language in there about doing a little some baseline testing of the pipes under the pre-existing streets and the flows and blockages that are there so that if there is clogs in the future they can use their performance bond of their people to correct it.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked anybody else wish to comment?  Yes madam?

Ms. Diane Senior presented herself to the Board and stated 46 Crumb Place I appreciate that Mr. David Steimets does not believe that there will be a significant visual impact to my property but I disagree.  He referred to the fact that I have a very heavily wooded property.  I do, it will not be once this takes place.  All the foliage that currently fronts my property will be removed because they’re looking to come right up literally to the property line and start construction there.  That is where the rip rap swale is located literally right along my front part of the wall.  Everything that’s on the street side of that would be removed, replaced by this tiered wall.  So 12 feet or more of wall with years before any kind of vegetation that they plant there actually reaches maturity and could cover that up.  So, there will be a significant visual impact to my property.  Additionally, the question about the fill coming in has not been addressed.  I’m very concerned about construction trucks coming up there.  The gentleman here, the lawyer who was on site, at the site walk when I asked him about that fill basically said “well, the driveway where they can turn around and that’s where they’ll come in, they’ll dump the fill, turn around and come out.”  The problem is, there is no place to turn around until it actually brought the fill in to create that driveway, so I’m very concerned about that construction process.  As we’ve said, bringing those vehicles in, the number of vehicles that need to be brought in, and how they are going to come in because it’s such a narrow street backing up and then making a sharp turn to come all the way down Crumb Place is simply not safe.  There are children in the neighborhood and there are cars that generally park on the street.  I would really like to see that you reconsider.  The question about where the driveway is coming in, we’ve gone through this yes looking at minimizing the steep slope disturbance but all of the visual impact is actually to my property.  It’s on the adjacent side.  I don’t know that I’ve seen a plan that actually looks to run the driveway headed towards the east so to the north, the upper part of this drawing, so where the first house on the left is.  It’s possible, I believe, to actually swing the driveway around, so yes they might have to sacrifice a house, but they would then get the visual impact that is not significant of that wall, so you could still build a house on what’s currently on the right hand side of that picture if you swung the driveway around.  I don’t know if that excessively impacts the slope, but I haven’t seen any plans that actually swing it around that way.  It does eat up significant property space on their property but it would minimize the visual impact, I believe to mine.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked anybody else wish to comment?

Mr. Mike DeFabio presented himself to the Board and stated I live right to the left of Mr. Heinzer’s property.  My main concern is still the rock removal that would happen.  I heard that there was not be any blasting or anything, but I’m still concerned about any vibration type of equipment since my property is higher than his, will it cause any damage to my house or the property?  Another concern is some of you gentlemen were up there at the site visit and I showed you more or less where my property is, that’s like almost at the bottom of the slope over there, so I’m concerned about the hammerhead driveway that would be built, it’s right at the edge of it.  I heard that when somebody lift it up somehow with all the fill and everything will there be a wall erected or there’ll be fill on my property?  There’ll be a wall there?  And, the snow removal also, I can’t see a snowplow, the tree company that comes in and plows our street, I can’t possibly see him making a turn and pushing snow into that hammerhead.  That’s kind of difficult to do, so I don’t know.  Those are my concerns.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked anybody else?  In terms of the landscaping that was proposed on the retaining walls, when I was at the site visit, somebody mentioned the height of the trees that were proposed.  What were those heights again?
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated the landscaping architect’s not here.  I can’t speak for him.  The bushes are planted in an area that’s this wide.  I would guess that those trees are just shrubs, not really trees.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded I think he said something different than that.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I asked that question, I think he said 5 to 6 feet.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated that’s about right.  That’s what I’m saying too.  My height.  Under 6 foot something.  You can see the applicant.  These are the plantings right here inside the tiered wall, there’s a row of plantings here, and a row of plantings here.  They have an area to grow in that’s about 4 to 5, 6 feet wide, that’s it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated can you confirm Ralph at Ms. Senior’s house, the elevation at the beginning of the wall is in here at grade.  It’s roughly at ground, at road elevation.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco  stated this would be at road elevation, at the top of that wall is road elevation.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated as the property dips down it becomes two and then three tiers.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated the bottom wall right here, that’s at grade.  That’s at grade and then between here and here there’s a 12 foot differential.  There are three 4 foot walls.  Each wall is only 4 feet tall.  There’s three of them to make up the 12 feet that we need to make up from here to here.  Those walls are this tall.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated their stepped.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco and then it goes in a bit 3, 5, 6 feet and then it goes up 4 feet.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated if the applicant doesn’t get two houses here, they can certainly get one and they don’t need our approval to get that either.  We would still have to put that road in.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated same road.  We’ve submitted plans that show if we built one house and if we built two houses.  The infrastructure is nearly identical.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that’s what I was trying to find out to what level is this similar to a one house situation.  Clearly there’d be less disturbance on the property if there were one house but in terms of the road it would still be a 14% grade.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated yes both ways.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi continued with needing to have these landscaped, the retaining walls.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated well frankly, if it was just one house, there would be no need for us to be here and to make that thing beautiful at all.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked physically what would you do if it were one house?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded if it were one house I imagine it would be just sloped down.  We have a plan with just an earth slope.  The walls were put in order to improve the esthetic appearance of that slope.  I wouldn’t have to put that slope.  I wouldn’t have to build those walls.  These are expensive walls.  I wouldn’t have to put them on the plan if I came in for one single building permit.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked but you’re assuming that you get an approval the way you want to do it as compared to have the Technical Services might require you to do it.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded you have to understand there is no requirement in the Town Law that I build the walls.  There’s no requirement.  We’re simply making up grade there.  There’s no requirement to build walls and make them look pretty to get a building permit.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated the original application you showed a one-on-one slope.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded right.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so in your opinion, Ed, he would not have to put in that wall in there if it were just a driveway.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded just for one house we would not be here.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked wouldn’t you have to stabilize the slope?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes.  You would have to stabilize the slope but you could do that…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated by just filling it in.  I also have to remind you we also submitted that plan without the walls.  The walls are done at my client’s expense to make it look better.  It’s the only reason. We can do that just by filling the area and we’re planting it, we’re landscaping it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you’d have to fill a larger area to get that stability there because the wall would reduce the…

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded no it’s 12 feet.  The change in grade whether the walls or not is the same.  We’re not getting any efficiency.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I guess my point is I’m not sure, maybe that’s what you’d like to go maybe that’s something in the process you would allow…

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we still have to go through the process and we may end up with the same scenario.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and the trees that would be planted there should at least, when they’ve grown in several years, I’m not sure how big a tree you can put there now but should hide that wall from Ms. Senior’s property.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked have you seen the garden center that’s been under construction?  First they built this big wall, and they put trees there and you can’t even see it anymore.

Mr. David Steinmetz and that could be addressed as a condition of the approval.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated I think we have done more than anyone has ever done to hide a slope.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated as far as the water goes I saw the water underground chambers, I’m not sure what you call them, the name for them, infiltrators, that seem to pick up all of the water runoff from the road and from the homes.  Technically nothing beyond what’s going down that slope now should go down that slope if all the rest of it goes into this infiltration system.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded essentially, you are correct but you have to remember that for this application we did a drainage study for the entire watershed, not just our two lots, we did a study of the entire watershed all the way down, I think the design point was on Ogden Road if I’m correct, it was at the culvert’s under Ogden Road.  I think that there’s hundreds and hundreds of acres drained into that point.  Our project is one acre.  We’re only probably providing an impervious area here, correct me if I’m wrong, but maybe about 6,000 square feet something like that out of at least 100 acres.  This would generally have no effect on any of that drainage system.  However, we are, since we did analyze it, we did include storm water systems that make no impact on that system.  There would be no impact and I think I described to you at the meeting that even if our whole drainage system completely failed, there still would be no measurable impact on the drainage system.  It’s just a tiny portion of a large watershed that we’re developing.  Our landscape architect is here if you have any further questions on the walls and I did hear a comment that we didn’t show certain perspectives of the wall.  I believe we did show them, Mr. DeLalia is here, he can go over that issue.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated my main comment on this presentation is that there’s an assumption that was in the last submission as well as in Mr. Steimets’ statement just now that the fact that you’ve been able to eliminate on the proposed second lot any disturbance in the area of over graded to 30% slope sort of solves the steep slope issue, but it really doesn’t because the ordinance, the steep slope ordinance and it says covers anything that’s greater than 15% or 15% or greater and you still have a proposal here that calls for 17,360 square feet of steep slope disturbance and the question under the ordinance is whether that’s the minimum disturbance of steep slope that’s necessary to allow the owner a reasonable use of the property.  In my mind, it really comes down to whether one lot is a reasonable use of this property or two lots is the minimum that would be a reasonable use of the property because that ordinance has that same language whether it’s greater than 15% and then it has an even tougher standard if it’s greater than 30% and I’m not sure I’m convinced that one lot is not a reasonable use of this property given the characteristics and the location and so forth and to me a reasonable use is more of an objective standard than a subjective how much did this owner pay?  I know you submitted several months ago some information trying to give a financial analysis as to why one lot is not a reasonable use frankly, I did not find that persuasive at all because it just has a certain glaring built-in assumptions that if you just tinker a little bit with the numbers than the result changes dramatically most notably the sale price of one home and there was no evidence to back up the number there, it was clearly, in my mind, almost a plugged in number, where someone would put in to try and prove a point.  If you raise that number even just a little, you had a perfectly profitable one house project and there are other assumptions that the site work would be the same whether it was one lot or two lots which to me doesn’t make much sense.  I know when the analysis was done you submitted something trying to show that the disturbance for the two lots was not much more than the one lot, but to do that you just made an assumption that you were just going to build a bigger a home and stick it in a certain location where as for example if you just took out the lot that’s closer to the property line, the area where the disturbance poses the greatest risk of run-off, you clearly have a lot less steep slope disturbance, dramatically less.  The question really is whether eliminating that lot down to the right side there still allows the owner a reasonable use of the property.
Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you Mr. Kline.  Mr. Chairman, Mr. DeLalia is here and we would like him, since the question came up on the site walk as well as this evening, we’d like him to simply present the landscaping and Jim if you can hit the heights of the trees, Mr. Bianchi was requesting a clear understanding for the record, the heights of the trees that you’re proposing, where they would go and the effectiveness of the visual benefit.

Mr. James DeLalia stated basically on the landscape plan that we’ve submitted we’re showing two main areas of screening: one is between the neighbor to the west and the new house on lot one, and those trees are primarily Norway Spruce and are a 12 to 14 foot height range along this edge of the property.  Down below here, we have a mixed height, we have the three walls as presented, with planting in between them, so each of these three walls, each is four foot in height and there’s a planting area which is going to be filled with shrubs and I have a picture which illustrates the look that we’re anticipating, but then at the bottom of the wall we also put a row of evergreens and those vary in height from 10 to 12 and a few are 8 to 10 foot height.  So, a lot of this lower wall system will be hidden by the evergreen trees that are being planted below them. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Jim, those are initial planting heights?

Mr. James DeLalia responded those are initial planting heights.  10 to 12 and 8 to 10.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked and the 10 to 12 has the ability to grow to what height?

Mr. James DeLalia responded all these trees have the ability to grow to up to 45, 50 feet in a 30-year period, but initially once these plants get established the typical Norway Spruce and the White Spruce will put on an average 8 to 9 inches good growth each year.  So, in a matter of three to five years these trees would be another 3 to 4 feet bigger than they are when they are installed.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked what are the bush heights that you mentioned on the 4-foot wall?

Mr. James DeLalia responded the shrubs as they go in are approximately two to three foot heights.  A lot of this wall, these are 4-foot walls and we have two to three foot shrubs in between, so you’re only going to see a small portion of the tops of the walls.  And, we did a mix of evergreens and deciduous so there’s some evergreens that will give you year-round screening of the wall and some deciduous plantings.  You’ll find that even deciduous plantings the stems and so on will break up the wall a little bit and help it recede so it’s not so visually dominant.  The point is by having plantings in between it does break up the scale of the walls significantly.  I have the manufacturer’s images of what the wall looks like.  I have a couple of copies I can bring up the Chairman.  We’re anticipating is it’s a concrete block wall but it has a natural rock face on it so it’s an attractive wall.  These units are 16 inches high and 32 inches long so essentially for a 4-foot wall we have three of these stacked high and then a cap, there’s this orange cap that goes on top of it so that it’s a relatively residential scale, it’s not a big block like you would see in a highway situation, but it’s a nice look, very residential in scale, very natural in appearance, nice grey color as well which will weather nicely and recede as well.  The thought is that obviously within a couple of years this wall system will virtually disappear as the evergreens both fill in width-wise and also height-wise.  You’ll see as time goes on you’ll see less and less of this wall.  We spoke at the site walk on Sunday morning of a possibility of doing an extended warranty on these plantings to ensure that they survive and that they’re maintained properly for a limited period of time so that the neighbors are protected and that the plantings thrive in that location.
Ms. Susan Todd stated I appreciate all the thought that you’ve put in to try to make the walls look as natural and landscaped as possible but I have a concern, a safety concern, it’s November, it just snowed, I’m driving down to my house, if I loose a little bit of control of my car, am I going to go off the edge of the wall into Blue Spruce or something. Also, on the other side, that’s a huge wall.  I’m trying to imagine.  How large is the wall on the boundary of the property?

Mr. James DeLalia responded about three feet tall.
Ms. Susan Todd asked how could that be?  Just having visited the site, it goes from…up at the top where the steep slope is.  Up further to the top of the page.  Up higher, isn’t there a wall there?  There’s no wall there?  Where were the 10 to 14 foot evergreens going to be?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded on the property line, that’s just to get some screening to give separation.

Ms. Susan Todd asked okay, there’s no wall there?

Mr. James DeLalia responded no.

Ms. Susan Todd asked up to the top there, there’s no wall there, there’s just evergreens?  Okay.

Mr. James DeLalia responded the only wall is around the snow storage there.

Ms. Susan Todd asked what do you think about the safety issues there?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated the plans show a guide rail running along the right edge of the driveway, almost the whole distance.  I don’t know if you can see it on that plan but it’s there.  If you look on your plans you can see it.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I couldn’t see it there.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the short answer, Ms. Todd, is there is a guide rail, we have no problem with that safety issue being memorialized as a condition.  We discussed it with Mr. Vergano.  We discussed it with Ms. Burleson.  My clients are well aware of it.  We’d have the guide rail issue whether we had one house in there or two.  It’s an issue we know we have to address.  I wanted Ralph to quickly respond to Mr. Fisher’s comments about soil, soil stability and where the fill was coming from.  

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco asked would you like to hear anything on that, I think we’ve actually answered that question.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded go ahead, for the record.

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated and I’ll lump in the other question by the young lady how’s the truck going to turn around.  In the initial part of the application we have to bring trucks in, they may have to go backwards, but they will create a platform just over the edge where you have to walk down.  That will take a few truck loads to do that.  Once that thing is at a certain grade, we can drive actually into the site and we’ll be able to turn around on the site.  If you were actually on the site seeing the house is staked out, you would have seen that in the area where the houses are going, it’s relatively level in there.  I don’t think the slope does it any justice, but certainly where the houses were they’re level backyards and there’s no problem at all for a truck to around in that area, in the area of the driveway of the first house certainly.  Where the fill is going to come from I’m not sure what that issue is but we are going to take some of the soil from the site itself.  The basements of those houses are the only excavations that we need to do on the site.  Those homes are technically almost on grade, so there would be some soil that would come from the excavation of the site, we would use part of that soil on-site.  We would recycle it on-site to use it for the fill section.  Now, that fill section, we did provide a profile, and that fill section I believe the deepest part of it is about eight feet deep.  So, it’s only eight feet of fill.  I’m six feet tall, so this is how much fill there is.  It’s not like there’s a gigantic monument there of fill.  Other than that, if you have any other questions about that I can answer them but I think that does answer the questions. 

Mr. Ed Vergano asked Ralph, how long do you expect that fill operation to last?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded I would say a couple of days.  The initial fill operation where trucks have to back down would probably be the morning of July 14th, but after that the trucks would be able to come in and it could last a couple of days to bring the fill in.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked what’s the total volume of fill?

Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco responded I was actually looking for that number, I don’t have the number handy but it’s about – I don’t even want to guess.

Mr. David Steinmetz commented we provided it on the earlier ….. (inaudible)
Mr. Ralph Mastromonaco stated it’s not an astronomical amount by any means but it does require a fill, as we said, whether it’s a one house there or two houses.  Same amount of fill. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I believe that Ms. Fasnacht confirmed the fill calculation in a January 24, 2008 letter in which she indicated the number of trucks and the amount of the days and she confirmed Mr. Mastromonaco’s fill calculation.  That’s the January 24, 2008 letter.  One last thing and then we have nothing more to add.  I just want to respond to one of the comments about squeezing in two houses.  I just want the record to be clear, we’re in a 10,000 square foot minimum lot area district; lot one is 18,392 square feet; lot two is 21,086 square feet.  Both lots are essentially twice the minimum lot area.  But, we would submit, Mr. Chairman, members of the Board, we’ve spent a great deal of time and you’ve spent a great deal of time and attention and we’ve worked seriously to address the concerns that the neighbors have raised and that your Board has raised.  We think that with appropriately fashioned conditions, your Board with your professional staff can adequately protect the public health, safety, and general welfare that you will allow my clients a reasonable use of the property that would not be all that different in terms of impact and construction if as somebody indicated in the work session you discussed, somebody went in to Mr. Vergano simply a building permit.  In light of the fact that that construction activity is likely to be permitted by a building permit application we would submit that it is appropriate to permit the construction of two houses with appropriate conditions on screening, on the fill, on the turn around, on the snow plowing, on the guide rail.  I’d ask you, we’ve been here a long time and you’ve got a long agenda.  We’d ask you to close the public hearing now, and I would ask you to entertain the possibility of a resolution to prepare to come to you that you could discuss at the next meeting.  I know some of you have reservations that maybe we will not be able to address.  I think others that have been out to the property, I think we’ve addressed your concerns, and we would ask you to vote favorably on this after you’re satisfied with the conditions that have been fashioned. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated thank you.  Any other comments from the Board?  Any last comments from the audience?  Yes, madam?

Ms. Senior stated on the question of the single lot use and getting simply a building permit for that.  One question that I have is: what are the rights of the neighbors in those situations and what input do we have in the case where if this were not approved they were to come to the Town and simply ask for a building permit?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it would require a steep slope permit so all the neighbors would be notified and given the opportunity to come in to express their concerns and their opinions.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated it would not come to this Board though. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it would come right to my office.

Mr. John Klarl asked Ed what do you do, a 28-day notice?  How much notice do you give them?
Mr. Ed Vergano responded 20 days.

Ms. Senior asked if this were to be approved for the two lots, does the drawings and the designs as they’ve been submitted here, do those run with the property the obligation to construct in the fashion that’s been approved, does that run with the property should they sell that property for other construction?  Or, is this simply a theoretical exercise that says “yes it would be possible to build something.”

Mr. Steven Kessler responded if we were to approve this, this would have to be built.  If somebody bought the property and they wanted to do something different, they would have to come back with a different plan to go through a different approval process.

Mr. John Klarl stated she’s also asking if a buyer comes along, can a buyer adopt the plans that are approved here?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes.

Ms. Senior asked if the buyer wanted to modify these plans he would have to come back to the Board?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes indeed. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated as a condition of approval just for the record, the applicant would have to, if there was a favorable verdict on this, would have to post a bond covering those improvements.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked any final comments?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what would be typically the kind of bond that this applicant would have to post to ensure against damages to neighboring properties? 

Mr. Ed Vergano responded the bond that would be posted would be to ensure the construction of the infrastructure as you see on the plan, notably the common driveway and the walls.  There would be a maintenance bond also posted which would be determined at the end of the construction period for a period of time so if there was any impacts we could draw from that maintenance bond.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated on of the things that applicants do almost immediately is to start requesting that we either draw down, or give back portions of the money and certainly we set a specific time frame for those monies.  The first thing that happens is they want the monies back.  My sense is that maybe we ought to, in cases like this, be sure that there’s some money around that the neighboring properties could draw upon if something dire should happen.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we can include that as a condition in the resolution.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked the water infiltration units, do they require maintenance?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes they do.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked and who’s responsible for that?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it would be the home owner’s responsibility.  The home owner’s or if you want to create a drainage district, it could be a district responsibility.  It could be a district of two homes which is not unprecedented but and is feasible.  At least we have somebody to go after if there’s a problem.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it’s something we should think about because I think if they’re not working we do have a real problem.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s something that would be in the resolution also.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked any further comments?  If not, Mr. Bianchi?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi moved that we close the public hearing and that we bring it back at the next meeting under old business, seconded.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the question I think there are a number of issues we should discuss if we were to approve this in terms of conditions and should spend that time at the next meeting to talk about things like performance bonds.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated we’ll take it back under old business then.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated whatever recommendations I think it would be helpful if you come back with recommendations as to the types of monies we’d like to see put up and specifically for what activities.  On the question, all in favor saying “aye.”  Let’s go back to the beginning of the agenda which was the first item (Mr. Chairman read from the agenda):

PB 16-99    a.
Letter dated February 9, 2009 from Tim Hetrick of the Hollowbrook Golf Club located on Oregon Road requesting that the required number of water samplings be reduced from 3 a year plus one storm event to 2 a year plus one storm event.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated I will turn the chair over the co-Chairman Ms. Taylor. I will recuse myself from this application.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we understand that there’s somebody here for the…

Mr. Ed Vergano introduced John Benvegna from Leggette, Brashears and Graham they are our environmental consultants John appeared at our last Board meeting.  John if you could just give us an overview of your May 21st report.

Mr. John Benvegna presented himself to the Board stated from Leggette, Brashears and Graham, I’m a consultant for the Town.  Last month when I came before you we discussed the golf course’s request to reduce their sampling frequency.  We answered some questions.  We gave our opinion on the issue which was that we were okay with it.  We didn’t have a problem with it under certain conditions.  The Board had asked us to go back and put that in writing and put those conditions in writing and I believe that’s what you have before you in the resolution.  Those conditions have been listed in the resolution which is before you for adoption tonight.  If you have any questions, I’ll be happy to answer them.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I do think that the Board has some questions and I think – I don’t want to preface anybody’s comments but this is a time we can ask questions.  The City of Peekskill when received their letter, you’ve seen it, they clearly object to reducing the numbers of samplings.  Upon looking and listening to the members of the Board I’m having this feeling that many people are once again in that second thought mode.  I thought we had abated some of our fears initially last time, but I think that upon reading the letter and rethinking this that I think we went back to square one perhaps, some of us.  Now would be a good time to pose your questions to see where we go from here.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I had asked at the work session your newest letter of May 21st, where you were recommending on page. 2, the third bullet about discontinuing the analysis of the petroleum distillates, and I don’t think if we proceed with this that we’re going to discontinue them.

Mr. John Benvegna responded that’s actually not in the resolution.

Mr. Robert Foley continued I know, but I want to finish.  I’m wondering, you’re the expert on this, and I’ve mentioned it at the work session, you’re saying that these compounds are not used on the course, if I’m reading this right, not used on the course.

Mr. John Benvegna responded that’s right.

Mr. Robert Foley continued meaning what, there’s no petroleum, oil or gas in lawn mowers or weed wackers?  I know the golf carts are electric but.

Mr. John Benvegna responded they’re not used on the course in the sense that the pesticides are used on the course.  So, that’s what I meant in that fashion.  The monitoring program’s essentially to monitor the use of the pesticides on the course and relative to the use of the pesticides, petroleum products are not used in that manner.  They’re not sprayed all over the course like pesticides are.  Even in that respect, they’re not…

Mr. Robert Foley asked is there any danger of leakage of oil or gas?

Mr. John Benvegna responded no and in my opinion the way I came to that conclusion was we’ve been monitoring this course for five years now and we’ve monitoring those parameters for five years now and there have been no detection whatsoever of those parameters.  In my mind, if there was an issue, and I’ve spoken to some members of the public where they were concerned of historical use of the property, in my opinion, that’s been addressed.  I certainly understand that at the time the golf course’s construction and during construction, you have construction vehicles on the property, you’ve got petroleum on the property, it made sense at the time.  But, we’re past that.  We’ve got five years of monitoring data, those compounds have never been detected and it wasn’t offering anything in my opinion.  There’s no sources on the course that would result in that kind of impact and if there was to be an impact, we would have seen it by now.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I guess it’s a matter of semantics when you said “are not used on the course,” you meant what you just said now and clarified it.

Mr. John Benvegna responded they may have an oil storage tank.

Mr. Robert Foley stated no, I’m talking about the mowers, the tractors and other stuff, and again, you’ve explained it.

Mr. John Benvegna responded let me just reassure you too, if there’s a spill, they’re legally obligated to report something like that, so we’d know about it.  It’s not something that wouldn’t be known and that’s the protection there.  They’re legally obligated to report any type of spill; if a mower crashes, or if they dump a can of gasoline over, it’s reportable by State Law, so we would know about it.  In that instance, certainly that would be a different situation and we might add those parameters in.

Mr. Robert Foley stated also in reference to your letter, and again it was brought up by a resident who’s head of the Hollowbrook Water Watch at the work session, in your opening paragraph, maybe you’re just setting the stage for your explanation, you’re kind of given a comment that’s kind of legal when you’re saying here in the third sentence, your second sentence you’re saying “as you are aware the environmental management plan for the course dictates the monitoring, etc.” whereas you were basically charged with looking into the…
Mr. John Benvegna responded I was given from my perspective.  The monitoring plan dictates the requirements of the monitoring program.  I was handed that document and it said: “this is what you must implement.”  I don’t consider that a legal term if somebody else does – all I was trying to say to the Board, I’m charged with following the monitoring plan, that’s my guide book, and that’s what I’m doing. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I will tell you as a lawyer, I didn’t find that to be a legal term, nor did I find that you were giving any legal analysis.  I don’t really understand the concern to that fact, all you’re doing is referring to a document.

Mr. John Benvegna responded and all I was trying to do in that statement was I was not around, I did not prepare the documents.  I didn’t know how many members of the Board were around at the time and I was just trying to let them know that that statement existed in the plan, that’s all.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated last question if I could.  In the actual prepared resolution, the top of page 2, I don’t know if you’ve seen it, and this I’ve wondered about because I’m back-and-forth on this whether this – if we go along with this, whether this improves the protocol of testing, it makes it a better more comprehensive plan even with the dropping of the spring testing or whether it doesn’t, and on the top paragraph whereas if we threw it, or near the end, again it’s not your wording but “selected subsets will actually improve the monitoring plan, etc.”  Do you feel that?

Mr. John Benvegna responded yes I do.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and specifically based on the four points you’ve made  in your letter?  

Mr. John Benvegna responded yes.

Ms. Susan Todd asked why do you think the City of Peekskill is so against reducing the number of testings from 3 to 2?

Mr. John Benvegna responded because they have a public water supply to protect.  People get very antsy about their water and I understand that, absolutely.  If I felt that there would be significant risk to the public water supply by reducing the sampling frequency I wouldn’t be standing here before you advocating that it’s okay to do.  I work for a firm, we have a reputation, my reputation is on the line here.  I work for the Town.  I wouldn’t be advocating something I didn’t believe in.  I’ve seen a lot of programs.  I’ve done a lot of monitoring.  I come from a different perspective understandably from the City of Peekskill, from yourselves, I’m trying to help you understand where I’m coming from in making that recommendation but at the end of the day, we’re the ones reviewing the data and you’ve asked for our opinion and that’s our opinion.  Ultimately, the Board doesn’t have to follow that opinion but all things considered and based on my experience, it’s really not, in my opinion, going to have a significant impact on the Peekskill water supply.  It hasn’t to date.  There have been no impacts in the Hollowbrook to date.  There have been no detections in the Hollowbrook to date and that’s one of the reasons we’re comfortable with it and the fact that we’re building flexibility into a change that if we need to go back to 3, we can.  If we get a detection or if something changes, we have the flexibility to go back to 3.  It’s not binding on the Town.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated one of the things that Peekskill asks for is a copy of your annual pesticide report, were you prepared, willing to share that with them?

Mr. John Benvegna responded absolutely.  We submit our reports to the Town.  So, I’m sure the Town can put them on the mailing list.  I’m happy to put them on the mailing list.  I have no problem with that.

Mr. John Klarl stated they ask they go to DEC and the City of Peekskill.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked they go to the City?  Because, it sounds as if they don’t.

Mr. John Klarl responded no, it says they request that it goes to DEC annually into the Water Superintendent of the City, that’s their request.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked has anything stopped them from coming to Town Hall to look at it?  It’s a public document right?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded yes, it’s a public document.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I understand as a courtesy it should be sent to them but it’s not that this has been something that has been hidden from them or kept from them.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think he just wants to set in process, it sounds like a procedure where you do the report, you send it to DEC and to the Town, and you send one copy for Peekskill.

Mr. John Benvegna responded I work for the Town, you tell me to send Peekskill a copy, I’ll send a copy.

Ms. Loretta Taylor continued I’m just saying it sounds like that’s what he wants, he does want that courtesy.

Mr. John Klarl asked has your firm ever done any work for the City of Peekskill?

Mr. John Benvegna responded I have to get back to you on that.  I don’t know if Tom might have been…

Mr. John Klarl asked right now you’re not aware of it?

Mr. John Benvegna responded right now I’m not aware of it, but I’ll certainly let you know.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked is Mr. Khuns here?  We’ve all read your letter, could you possibly respond to a comment that you have in here that, I guess I’ll quote it: “with the responsibility of providing safe, clean drinking water to our citizens.  The City considers any detected levels of metal or pesticides, significant.”  I think you’re saying that regardless of action levels or standards, any amount is unacceptable from your view point.
Mr. Khuns responded anything is significant.  If we pick up anything out there.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked would you say that generally our drinking water even if it doesn’t come from the Hollowbrook contains any of these other items in minute trace quantities?

Mr. Khuns responded it’s hard to say.  Go back look over the years, things that we’ve picked up are minute trace quantities but my concern is if it starts out minute and it grows and we don’t know about it because we’ve eliminated a round of testing.

Ms. Susan Todd asked do you do your own testing?

Mr. Khuns responded yes we do.  We do some physical characteristics on the Hollowbrook, on water testing coming in to the pump house and we do a vast array of tests on the water that comes through the filter plant.

Mr. John Klarl asked do you test by the brook area that goes through the golf course?

Mr. Khuns answered we don’t test near the brook area, we test by the pump house where it comes in to our supply which is two miles, three miles from here. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked what would be the frequency there?

Mr. Khuns responded daily.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so you would be able to pick up something, some trace of something.

Mr. Khuns responded we do minor tests on a daily basis.   We do turbidity and items of that nature, pH and stuff like that something that we pick up or hit on right away and start looking for issues.  It’s happened before.  It’s happened on the construction projects we’ve picked up a lot of turbidity.  We’d go out in the water shed and find out where it’s coming from.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but my point would simply be that if something were happening you would almost know about it instantly because you’re monitoring to some extent daily.

Mr. Khuns responded it depends what it is.  We’re not doing scientific breakdowns of chemicals that would be done on this three times a year.  We’re not doing that kind of test.  We do rudimentary testing out there and then if we find something that triggers a reaction from us than we’ll go start looking elsewhere to see what’s going on.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked do you ever do tests that are in the nature of the testing?

Mr. Khuns responded yes we do.  We do it water the filter plan.  We do it at the camp fill reservoir, where it comes up there.  We do those very similar tests.
Mr. Ivan Kline asked to what’s being done here at the Hollowbrook?  How often do you do that?

Mr. Khuns responded on an annual basis. 

Mr. John Klarl asked is that the reservoir off of Frost Lane?

Mr. Khuns responded off of Frost Lane.

Mr. John Klarl asked Lindberg?

Mr. Khuns responded right.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated don’t get me wrong, I’m just trying to play devil’s advocate here, it’s not that I’m supporting one side or the other at this point but is there any water in your system that you feel is any cleaner than this water given the test results that you’ve seen to date?  Or is it about the same?

Mr. Khuns responded it’s the same.  It’s a really difficult question to answer.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I think it’s somewhat unrealistic to think that you can get absolutely pure, clean water anywhere.  That’s my point.

Mr. Khuns responded absolutely not.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and I’m not an expert in this area but if this water is testing below levels that are set what standards are they?  If they are within or below those levels that would comprise – I would assume that would be acceptable for drinking water.  Is that an incorrect assumption?

Mr. Khuns responded I agree with that but if they’re okay today, what about tomorrow?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded I understand, I’m just playing one side.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked if I understand correctly, there’s been no detection in the Hollowbrook itself, correct?

Mr. John Klarl asked has the City of Peekskill received a copy of the proposed resolution?

Mr. Khuns responded yes we have. 

Mr. John Klarl asked did you see the first condition indicating the adjustment “the sampling frequency will not binding on the Town and can return to three times per year at the discretion of the Town’s consultant if deemed necessary in response to changing water quality conditions.”

Mr. Khuns responded yes I saw that and who’s going to be your response for deeming that necessary and how’s that going to be triggered, and how’s that going to happen?

Mr. John Klarl responded our Town consultant.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated it strikes me that, and I understand given the job you have why you feel this way but your objection is in a large part to the protocol that was approved a number of years ago by this Board because that’s the protocol that has the expression “toxicologically significant” if it’s not that than it allows for this reduction and that’s being requested.  It sounds like you’re objecting in principle to there being the possibility of a reduction and based upon that sort of a standard.

Mr. Khuns responded yes I do.  I feel that we should stick with the standard that was set in the beginning.  It should stay the way it is.

Mr. Ivan Kline continued but the standard that was set in the beginning includes the contemplation of the reduction to two if there has been no toxicologically significant pesticide detection.  The conclusion, the consultant is there has not been than under the protocol that the Board approved a number of years ago, it sort of calls for this reduction really.

Mr. Anthony Ruggierio Director of Planning with the City of Peekskill, yes we understand what you’re saying but, again, eight years ago we objected to that phrase and we objected to the reduction.  We always insisted on a three a year.  Again, we have to look at it conservatively.  It’s our primary drinking source.  I understand what you’re saying, but again, I object to that.  It’s an extra layer of protection for us.  It’s an extra early detection for Ed and his team.  Also, we’ve never received the reports and again yes we could come, we don’t know maybe that coordination could be worked out too.  We’ve never seen a report in eight years, except for recently which staff has graciously given us.  Again, we can come and get copies if you tell us when they come or what the schedule is but we have to look at it from a view point of our citizens and our drinking water.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we appreciate the difficulty because I’m sure that as a Town, one of the Town Boards here, we would have a similar concern if you were doing something that we felt might impact the residents of Cortlandt, but I want to come back to that statement that Ivan made and that is the fact that we are able to reduce the number of samples is some ways including in that broader idea that there could be a reduction after five years.  That was in the original conditions and it was largely because of your strenuous objections in Peekskill that we have such a very arduous sampling program on this golf course.

Mr. Anthony Ruggierio stated and we appreciate that.  We do.  I understand what you did, I wrote the letter eight years ago and I was here and you’ve always been very gracious and we appreciate it.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated but we want to be fair to the owners of the golf course and say “since everything at this moment seems to be going okay, we would possibly look at reducing this” and then say to them at the same time “should anything go wrong, if there’s any traces of anything in that water, if they should begin to sample above the typical the State standard, immediately we have to go back to this.”  I think we’re trying to protect your interest as well.  We don’t really want to be bad neighbors but we do want…

Mr. Khuns stated we appreciate that and we thank you for that.

Mr. John Klarl asked and this water supply also is used by Town of Cortlandt residents?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated just from my view point it’s like we’re trying to draw a cost  benefit analysis of what were saving on the – not what we’re saving, but the golf course is saving versus what we are giving up in quality.  And, we’re talking about water.

Mr. Khuns responded and my job is to protect that water.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded and your position is perfectly justified.  It’s a difficult decision.  Do you give up a little quality for a lot of money?  I don’t know if it’s really related to money period.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated if I could just interject.  If I thought we were actually affecting quality of water than it’s a no-brainer.  I don’t think there’s any evidence that the reduction would actually impact the quality of the water and if there were any evidence of that I’m sure our consultant wouldn’t be recommending going ahead with the change.  It’s really a question of whether making this change creates any meaningful risk that there will be something missed for a 30 or 60 day period of time which might in turn cause some problem.  That’s what we’re really looking at.  Instead of there being a test which might now be in June, I take it will be in August or something…

Mr. John Benvegna responded our first test would probably be in early June,  we’re going to do early summer and the Fall.  The event eliminated would be spring.

Mr. Ivan Kline continued so spring could be April or…

Mr. John Benvegna responded right end of April most likely and the grace period we did that because we want to see the sampling events, we assume with a grace period application [1:10:02 inaudible] in the spring there’s various applications made, come June, July and August there are more frequent applications.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated it’s not as if we’re saying “go ahead use something on the course that you were otherwise not permitted to use and that might increase the risk of actual harm to the drinking water.”  All we’re doing if this is approved is saying we’re allowing them to eliminate a test that might now be done in late April and instead they’ll just rely upon the one that will go forward in early June instead and I think what our consultant is saying is he doesn’t see there being any meaningful risk to the health, safety or welfare of the water supply by virtue of simply doing that.  Based upon that, personally, I’m comfortable with going ahead.

Mr. Robert Foley asked point of clarification do you mean early July?  Because the cut off, you told us the last meeting June 21st.

Mr. John Benvegna stated spring is June 21st, that’s correct.  It would be in early July.

Mr. Robert Foley asked if we were to agree to drop the spring testing the first one would occur within the next month?

Mr. John Benvegna responded that’s right.  The other thing to remember too is that one of the conditions we added is that we are expanding the parameter list.  We are going to look for additional pesticide compounds that currently aren’t being looked for now.  Right now the program doesn’t include everything that he uses.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked so what you’re saying John, is it possible then that by not – if we were to keep the same protocol; to keep the three testing per year, not change anything, then keep the same number of samples that we’re testing that we could be losing an opportunity?  Because, the two samples that we’ve taken per year would have an increased constituent investigation?
Mr. John Benvegna responded right.  Essentially, we’re expanding the parameter list to include everything that he uses.  Right now the way the plan was written, and there are reasons for that we don’t need to go into now, but the way the plan was written there are only certain compounds when he uses them are looked for.  Theoretically, he could be using something that we’re not analyzing for whether I sample ten times a year or once a year, if I’m not analyzing for it, I’ll never find it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so you’re going to expand the numbers of things you’re looking at?

Mr. John Benvegna responded yes and to me that’s a benefit and to me that was a trade-off, that was something I said to them “you want us to do this for you, I want something in return,” and they said “we’re fine with that.”

Mr. John Klarl asked how does the City of Peekskill feel about sampling twice with a smaller net or three times with a smaller net and twice with a larger net?

Mr. Khuns responded I can live with that.  We can live with that.  I would like to clarify one thing with the Board though in reference to the question I asked about the DEC, the pesticide report.  That report is every applicator has to fill out the end of each year and it has to be in the DEC office no later than February 1st, that’s a record of all the pesticides that were used by that applicator at that location.  That’s the document I would like to get.  I haven’t gotten it before, it’s the first request that I know of that’s been made today just so we have a knowledge of what pesticides are used on that golf course. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated why don’t we ask the Superintendent, I’ve spoken to him.  Can you put on the record Tim, as who you’re willing to send that to?

Mr. Tim Hetrick responded I send that to DEC at the end of the year and the City of Peekskill, I’ll send that to them as well.  At the end of the year I give to consultant’s is the same my same spray record so that’s not a problem.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that’s good because in the sharing of the information a lot of anxieties are reduced.  You know what’s happening and you feel a little bit more comfortable and certainly, just sharing, there’s more of a cooperative spirit that is built between the City and the Town.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that’s part of the problem I’ve had in trying to decide this because I’m aware of the past history where you guys haven’t seen the reports and I don’t know who’s responsible for that.  The impression was that you have.  I didn’t know you hadn’t.  Also, Mr. Khuns you’re an expert pesticide control expert?

Mr. Khuns responded I’m an applicator as well. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated if the City of Peekskill is okay with what was just described as the two with the wider net, that’s the very thing that’s in the resolution that our consultant recommended.  If I’m hearing it right then we have an agreement that that’s a fair way to proceed.

Mr. Khuns responded as long as we get the reports and the pesticide application.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I think we’ve reached an accord here.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’d like see because of the past history a quick action response to any hits to make sure all interested parties are informed and that they don’t have to come here to pick up a report.  We’re good neighbors and the report should automatically should be a condition.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think they’re agreeing that they’re going to send them the reports.  We did reach a consensus on that at least.  Are we ready to take a vote here?

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question then, if we’re going to go to the resolution.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I have to get a motion first, but I’m just asking, I know Susan’s going to present the motion of granting, are you ready for that?

Ms. Susan Todd stated Ms. Chairwoman I’d like to make a motion to adopt resolution no. 23-09, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, in the language of the resolution if were to vote for this, I would like to see some words added because this has been a problem in the past with this golf course application going way back where stuff were left out.  On item no. 3 “the existing parameter list will be expanded to include all pesticides,” why not add “and fertilizers?”  I believe they’re two different products and “used on the golf course,” why not also say “used on or stored on the golf course,” to make it more specific and then further into that where you do list, and this was brought up at the work session, “all other parameters including:” and you go on metals, nitrates and we go on, it has been stated that the petroleum distillates is included in there, I’d like to see the words in there.  Why they weren’t in this, I don’t know.  That’s my problem, there’s been stuff slipping through the cracks here.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded you’ve heard that Mr. Benvegna, but you’re hearing and I see you shaking your head so you feel good about putting that in and that could go in as far as you’re concerned?
Mr. John Benvegna responded relative to the fertilizers those weren’t touched, we would continue to analyze for those anyway so they’re not specifically stated but it is inherent that they’re included so I can write that out.

Mr. John Klarl asked do you have the resolution in front of you?

Mr. John Benvegna responded yes.

Mr. John Klarl stated you want to go to condition no. 3?  So, Mr. Foley is suggesting that condition no.3 read: “the existing parameter list will be expanded to include all pesticides and fertilizers used on or stored at the golf course.”  I didn’t get the complete essence of your third comment.  You added the word “fertilizers” and “stored on” and what was the third comment?

Mr. Robert Foley responded and then the word “petroleum distillates,” be actually listed there if possible.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked where?

Mr. Robert Foley responded you’re having “phosphorous, chloride, dissolve solids,” after the word “solids,” add the word “petroleum distillates.”  I’m not a chemist.

Mr. John Benvegna responded no problem.  Just for the record, nitrates and ammonia are listed there and those are fertilizers but I’ll clarify that.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked would it be appropriate to say “pesticides, fertilizers and all other applications” to cover everything?

Mr. John Benvegna responded yes, that’s fine. Anything he puts on the course.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked just so I’m clear on this does the resolution as it reads right now with these modifications, is that okay with your concept of doing it twice a year with the expanded scope of testing?  It’s okay with you?  Okay.

Mr. John Benvegna stated I was going to add another thing too as far as getting the reports, I’d be more than happy to get them if it’s okay with the Town, I’m sure it’s not a problem, but as soon as I get the lab data, I can forward them the raw lab reports if they’d be interested in getting those, this way you don’t have to wait for reports to be generated.  I get them in electronic format.

Mr. John Klarl asked Ed, do you want to make that a condition?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded that’s fine.

Mr. John Klarl stated condition five was that we were going to circulate the reports that we receive to the State and the City.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated but we impose a condition on ourselves by doing that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re on the question so if there aren’t any other comments can we vote now all in favor saying “aye.”



*
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PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW):

Mr. Steven Kessler read the following from the agenda:

PB 4-09      a.
Public Hearing: Application of the Roman Catholic Church of the Holy Spirit for Site Development Plan Approval for a proposed 1,675 sq. ft. addition and remodeling of the existing church with related site improvements located on a 19.71 acre parcel of property on the southerly side of Crompond Road (Route 202) as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Badey & Watson, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated March 26, 2009 (see prior PB 17-96).
Mr. Glenn Watson presented himself to the Board and stated I’m from Badey & Watson representing the Holy Spirit parish.  With me is Ted Lutz from Foresight Architects in Clifton Park, NY who will speak towards the end regarding the architecture of the building that’s being proposed, or the addition that’s being proposed and Father Thomas Kiely pastor of the parish.  This is a relatively small project.  The site is fully developed for the parish except for what we’re seeking tonight and that’s the modification to the site plan to allow approximately a 1,650 square foot addition.  What you see towards the top of the presentation is the entire property.  It’s approximately 19 acres.  All of the development is at the north end of the property.  The property incidentally is on the south side of Crompond Road right at the Peekskill line.  It’s the first parcel in the Town.  On the enlarged portion of the property shows three buildings and parking areas none of which are to be, with the exception of the building, none of which are to be disturbed.  What you see on the top of this slide is the church building itself in its present condition.  All of the activity that we are seeking approval for is centered around the church.  On the lower part of the slide you see a darker brown colored portion of the building, that’s the proposed addition it’s to be in filled in part and there’s some architecture details that will be added to make the building a more pleasing appearance.  The purpose of the addition is to make the church more functional.  I’ll let Mr. Lutz explain that when he speaks.  Again, it’s roughly a 1,650 foot addition.  There are some sidewalks that have to be reconfigured to get to the parking lots.  What’s a little less obvious on the plan and much less obvious here is that there are some minor drainage additions in connection with catching water from the building and delivering it to the existing drainage system.  The rest of the site: the parking lots, the parish house, the rectory are all to remain unchanged.  What you see here is a photograph of the church building in its present condition, in its present architectural style.  Mr. Lutz’s firm has been working on the plans for some time.  I will change the slide showing the artist’s rendering or their rendering of the building when it’s complete and ask Mr. Lutz to come up and explain a little bit about the purpose of the building addition and the changes in the architecture that is being proposed.
Mr. Ted Lutz stated the existing building, the exterior, has an existing tower and it also is all sided with paint T1-11 type siding, so that’s the current exterior with asphalt shingle roof.  The purpose of the addition is to add about 100 seats to the seating area for the church.  We’re going to continue to have – there’ll be a new tower element.  The tower has been lowered to fall within the 35-foot height limit.  The exterior will be an engineered wood type of siding that would be painting along with wainscoting and trim.  That would be consisted of material that would be synthetic plastic and things like that. There would be a synthetic wood-like materials and there would be some stone again with asphalt shingle roof.

Mr. Glenn Watson stated I think that’s our entire story.  We’d be happy to answer any questions.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked it doesn’t change the parking requirements?

Mr. Glenn Watson responded it doesn’t change the parking requirements because we have more than adequate parking.

Mr. John Klarl asked with your tower you’re staying within the 35-foot height?

Mr. Glenn Watson responded what you’re actually seeing here is an earlier rendition which is a little bit higher than the maximum.  But, it was about three feet too high and we’ve lowered it to meet the 35-foot requirement.

Mr. Ted Lutz continued in this rendition it has been lowered, nevertheless I will fall within the 35.

Mr. John Klarl asked but you’ll stay within the 35 feet so no variance is needed?

Mr. Ted Lutz responded that’s correct.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked it’s a public hearing is there anybody that wishes to comment on this application?

Mr. Andrew Fischer stated I was just going to ask with this renovation on the property if there could be some consideration given to improve traffic flow on 202 in-and-out of the property when there are events at the church it’s hard to make a left onto the property from 202 or left out of the property and over the years, I live nearby, I was wondering over time, there’s an old driveway and gate that seems to be opposite the Beach Shopping Center entrance opposite Dayton Lane and I was wondering with the planned renovations would it any way be feasible to open that driveway and have a circular flow and is there any possibility of getting a traffic light from the DOT at that intersection it might make it easier for the occupants using the property and the public.  Ever since, years ago the Beach Shopping Center was a bit weak on traffic and once they put more attractive stores in, the lack of a traffic light there has been an issue and I know Ed, we have a supposed proposal sitting in front of the DOT for a traffic light at Lafayette?

Mr. Ed Vergano responded and Conklin too.

Mr. Andrew Fischer continued and Conklin/202.  I don’t know where that stands.  Is there any possibility of that being expanded to include this?  I certainly don’t mean that the church is expensive in any way.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I think getting an original copy of the Declaration of Independence would be easier.
Mr. Andrew Fischer responded I see.

Mr. John Klarl stated but those lights should assist the Holy Spirit driveway.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked I’m sorry?

Mr. John Klarl responded but those lights should assist the Holy Spirit driveway.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded it probably would.  But, again, that would have to be warranted.  That would have to be evaluated by the State and I’m not sure this would mean the warrants.

Mr. Andrew Fischer asked is 100% of the property in the Town of Cortlandt and not in Peekskill or jurisdiction for this?

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s there.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked anybody else wish to comment on this application?  Any comments from the Board?
Mr. Robert Foley stated I know the City of Peekskill has no problem.  County of Westchester because of the 202 corridor any?

Mr. Chris Kehoe it was referred to the County of Westchester we haven’t gotten a response. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked and the Fire Department that’s routine that they have.  When the hospital was before us, I brought it up because of that corridor problem and with traffic and I guess since it’s only a renovation and the fact the old existing gated entrance that comes across from Dayton Lane at 202, there’s no anticipation to utilize that with this plan correct?

Mr. Glenn Watson stated that’s correct.

Mr. Robert Foley asked that stays closed?

Mr. Glenn Watson responded that’s correct.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you guys did you review the memorandum?
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that would have been in the mail.  It was basically some landscaping comments and getting more information about the elevations.  So, we will look back at that review memo and work whatever needs to be worked into a resolution.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I move that we close the public hearing and my sense is that we can ask staff to prepare a resolution for the next meeting, seconded, on the question, with all in favor saying “aye.”


*



*



*

OLD BUSINESS
Mr. Steven Kessler read the following from the agenda:

PB 3-09      a.
Application of Ryan Main LLC, c/o Finklestein-Morgan, for a recommendation to the Town Board for a Special Permit for Residential Re-Use, and for Site Development Plan Approval and for Wetland, Steep Slope and Tree Removal permits for the construction of 56 residential units to replace the existing 56 units on a 19.3 acre site located on the south side of Route 6 and the west side of Regina Avenue as shown on a 7 page set of drawings entitled “Special Land Use Permit for Pondview Commons on the Boulevard” prepared by Cronin Engineering dated October 13, 2008 (see prior PB 26-96).

Mr. Steven Kessler asked Mr. Steimets we’re going to set up a site visit.
Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes Mr. Chairman we would ask that you proceed with a site visit.  I think you had talked about June 28th.  We’d like to bring you out and show you the site.  It is an existing developed disturbed site.  This is one of those unique parcels that the residential re-use special permit zone was created for and we are as you all know applying for the re-development of the site at the existing density of 56 units for this property.  We’d like to bring you out there and show you it because we think that it will help not only explain our concept, the design but most importantly to give you a better sense of the environmental issues that we know we will need to discuss and address with the Board.  I was here for your work session and I did hear some of the dialogue.  I would ask your Board to wait until you’ve been out there to see why we believe a conditional neg. dec. would be entirely appropriate on a job site of this nature.  This is not virgin property.  This is not undisturbed land.  This is a piece of property that has 56 units on it right now, a high density of individuals living there.  We believe there’s going to be a reduction in vehicles, a reduction in residents and a major clean-up of a blighted site right now.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and 56 is consistent with current zoning there?

Mr. David Steimnetz responded in fact 56, my client – just one quick step back.  We’ve spent a number of meetings with the Town Board because in order to get to your Board we had to be released by the Town Board as a project that would be eligible under the RUSP.  As we discussed with the Town Board, and you may not be aware, we actually have the ability to generate a higher density of 56.  We’re down 20% to from what we could be asking for.  That was one of the factors that the Town Board felt was quite laudable by Mr. Vourliotis and Ryan Main that they actually came in they didn’t ask for a maximum density on this project, they asked to rebuild what’s there.  This is not going to be high-end housing but this is going to be appropriate workforce housing.  It’s going to be a vast improvement over what’s out there and it’s something that the Town Board, I know looks highly and favorably about.  One last footnote, Mr. Vergano knows, we are trying to coordinate the sewer situation with a number of projects in that area.  I don’t want to go into the details of that.  I want you to know though that Mr. Vergano is trying to spearhead efforts to get some of the different property owners in that area to exchange engineering information.  Mr. Cronin’s office has been working with at least one other engineering firm to try to arrive at a sewer situation that would benefit the Route 6 corridor, the Van Cortlandtville school and other properties.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated just to elaborate on that for a moment.  The receiving sewer on Westbrook Drive is at a near capacity and this is the project along with the West Rock project and other applications along Route 6 would need either an improvement to that system in order to accommodate their projects.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Mr. Chairman I move that we set a site inspection for this property on June 28th, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Chris, you’ll let us know the order of the site inspector?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler read the following from the agenda:

PB 18-07    b.
Application of Ranjor Saini for Site Development Plan Approval and a Special Permit for a proposed 40 ft. by 22 ft. canopy, the relocation of the existing gas pumps and alterations to the existing convenience store known as the Food Stop Convenience Store/Gas Station located at 2225 Crompond Road (Route 202) as shown on a drawing entitled “ Proposed Site Plan” prepared by John Lentini, R.A. latest revision dated May 20, 2009.
Ms. Susan Todd stated Mr. Chairman I propose that we set a public hearing for this for July 7th, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

Mr. Steven Kessler read the following from the agenda:

PB 13-05    c.
Application and Final Environmental Impact Statement dated October 16, 2008 by  Kirquel Development Ltd. for Preliminary Plat Approval and Steep Slope, Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a 22 lot major subdivision of 52.78 acres of property located on the west side of Lexington Ave. and at the south end of Mill Court as shown on a 10 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development and Subdivision for Residences at Mill Court Crossing” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated September 22, 2008.
Mr. Peter Lynch presented himself to the Board and stated I’m the attorney for Kirquel Development.  I’m a new face here.  I’m from Albany, New York and I’m here representing Mike Sheber and his company.  We’re here at a request to just bring the Board up-to-date on our work in preparing the final environmental impact statement.  You all know that we have received comment letters from your consultants Clark and WSP Sells and we are going to take the appropriate steps to correct the procedural aspects of the FEIS to make it a more reader friendly document and comport with form that is suggested by your consultants.  What we’re really here for tonight is really a two-fold.
Mr. Steven Kessler interrupted I’m sorry it’s more than procedural though, I thought there were omissions as well?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded yes, but what I was going to get into it next is the substantive aspect of it.  What we’re here for tonight is to address the substantive changes that we’re working on in the FEIS that have already been made to date and that substantive work will continue.  What we have up on the screen here, you can see that we have reduced the number of lots off of Mill Court to 16.  You may have recalled that in the FEIS there was a total of 22 lots off of Mill Court.  There were three lots accessible at this point here and there were 19 lots accessible along Mill Court.  So, we’ve made a reduction of the lots coming off of Mill Court from 22 to 16.  The reason for that is simply that there was a lot of public comment made on the DEIS about the original plan.  You know we had 27 homes proposed even though density could have been up to 34, we came up with a plan of 27 and we want this Board to recognize that the applicant is very serious about mitigating impacts in response to comments that had been made on the DEIS.  We’ve not only gone forward at this point with a reduction of the number of lots, but we’ve focused on reducing lots along the Mill Court access point.  The benefit of this particular change is in the middle of the site we’ve created a 22.8 acre lot which will be a forever wild lot.  It is the most significant portion of the site and in the Evans Associate report it’s a very detailed analysis of the benefits of maintaining such a large track.  We also have conservation easements but the point that I want to make clear to the Board tonight is that the FEIS is a work in progress.  It is a document that we are not just giving lip service to comments but rather we have made every effort to reduce the project in order to mitigate impacts that have been raised through the DEIS process to achieve a balance.  We’re attempting to achieve a balance of the environmental, social and economic factors.  Now, we’ve received the consultant reports and we’re working on changing the FEIS to that point but we’re also here tonight to introduce a recent change that we just made and we submitted it to the Board just last week.  Mr. Bianchi, you had made a comment several years ago about the fact that the access road coming off of Mill Court was impacting what was known as, or identified as wetland B, and there was a lot of discussion about that early on “well, we’ve looked at the project.  We can’t do a road realignment so we’re going to have that potential impact on wetland B.”  What we have done because that was an issue of concern and because impact on wetland is of such a significant factor that we asked Cronin Engineering to go back and study that issue harder.  And, what they did is they’ve actually come up with the revised plan that we’ve submitted last week which we’re going to be putting in the FEIS as an alternative.  You can see that the road actually shifts to the right and gets away the wetland B area.  In fact, the reduction by changing that shift in the road we’ve reduced the wetland disturbance from 0.03 acres to 0.00, so there’s no disturbance of the wetland and we’ve reduced the buffer disturbance from 1.67 acres to 0.92.  The point that we’re trying to make here is because that issue was raised on the wetland and because we had looked at it before and we weren’t able to come up with any kind of viable plan we went back to the drawing board and we have come up with this alternative.  The point that we really want to express to this Board is we realize that the SEQRA process, the adoption of the DEIS, the FEIS it’s an evolutionary process that requires us to evaluate and take a hard look at the substantive issues and procedural compliance but also to take a look at the substantive issues and because we’re going back to the drawing board right now and rewriting the FEIS to address all of the concerns that have been set forth in the consultant’s report, we not only wanted to bring this Board up-to-date on what work we’ve achieved thus far but also to solicit any comments that this Board may have or any members from the public that may have here tonight.  What we’d like to be able to do when we make our next submission of the FEIS, we’d like it to be in a form that would be acceptable so that we can continue the process.  So, that’s what we’re here for tonight and we thank you for the time.  If you have any questions we have all of our consultants here tonight.  If there’s any substantive questions.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated there won’t be any public comment until we’ve received the FEIS and we accept that and then there’ll be a public hearing on the FEIS.  We’re not at the point now.  We had the public hearings on the DEIS and now we’ll have to wait until we have a completed document to get additional input from the public.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded that’s fine.  We’re just inviting the comments because we are in the process of preparing the document so if there was something that any of the Board members thought you know “hey you guys are missing a point, or we think that you ought to take a look at this,” we’d welcome the comment but we appreciate that comment and thank you for your time.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked any comments from the Board or staff?

Mr. Robert Foley stated while I don’t think the whole document is discombobulated it is put together pretty good in many respects but just to make the point.  When I went searching for an item that I wanted to make sure was still included in there and I know the neighboring town would like to see it and that would be the Route 6 northern bypass if it ever happens along Strawberry Road or adjacent to it and I believe in the early stages of this application at the scoping it was brought up and I think it was an 80 foot right of way, correct me if I’m wrong.  I think it may have been in the DEIS, I’m not sure but somehow I can’t find it in this document and the example would be when I was looking under alternatives on page 4-1, I’m just using this as an example, I won’t get into a lot of other details it refers to the Route 6 bypass and the cluster and there isn’t any cluster now and it tells me to look at response – see the applicant’s responses 2-10 and 2-17 so when I go back to those on pages 2-6 for response 2-10 and page 2-8 for response 2-17, there’s really nothing about the right of way in the so-called bypass in those two responses unless I’m losing it or missing it here.  That’s just an example of trying to follow the document.  There’s another example.  I have other questions and I don’t know how much detail – there’s numerous spelling mistakes of names of people who took the time and come speak up at the hearing, neighbors and residents.  I’ve sited some of this.  I’ve corrected them in here on most of the comment page for the public hearings.  I don’t know whether I should state them now for the record or I should just submit them?  Okay, because most of the names are wrong, the last names.  On page 1-12 because of the current times of the economic problems and so forth, on your 1-12 on your socioeconomic section – and this became an issue during the hearings and some of the Board comments about the projected sale prices of the houses then and so forth.  On here on page 1-12, you have taken into account the economic downturn and saying that the so-called $900,000 home selling price and what the revenue would come into the Town, the school district, you’ve downgraded it about 10% to an about $800,000 sale price and of course the revenues to the Town or school district go down accordingly.  What is the basis of the figure 10%, and when this was put together in October or before October of last year, should that number be further reduced?  It’s just simply a question to look into it.  On the same page under, and there’s also another section under “education,” but let me go to that same page 1-12; the first paragraph under “socioeconomics” by having less units the projected student enrollment for Lakeland Schools is less according to your formula here and then you also state the last sentence of that paragraph in the middle of the page 1-12 “to reflect three students house in the existing three-unit apartment building and that in addition to public school enrollment to be generated from the applicant’s project is 16 students distributed over all grade levels.”  The question I have is the existing unit apartment building, is that the three-story structure on your site?  What is the three-unit apartment building?  Is the one that currently exists on Lexington.  Okay.  And, there are only three students in that one building?  But, what about the rest of the complex?  
Mr. Peter Lynch stated other buildings are not on the Kirquel property is what Mike was saying.

Mr. Robert Foley stated so in other words the smaller bungalows to the north on Lexington of the main Court way apartment building are not on Kirquel property?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded that is correct.

Mr. Robert Foley stated but the larger building is?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes those are not on the property.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but then how is the three-story apartment building on it then?  Isn’t that in the center there?

[1:50:10 ] asked the three-story is right there Mike, right?

Mr. Mike Sheber stated yes.

[1:50:14] stated and then there’s other apartments down here.  There’s only one building that’s not on Kirquel property.
Mr. Robert Foley stated so the three-story and those two other buildings on each side.  There are no students in those?

Mr. Peter Lynch because you’ve asked the question we’ll make sure that we respond to that as we’re working on the FEIS.  We don’t have all the answers here tonight but because you’re raising that type of an issue, we appreciate that. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated because there are a lot of buildings there and some people think they are on the property.  I’m being informed that some of them aren’t.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded and it will require a point of clarification and that’s exactly what I was asking for.  If there something like that of concern we’d be happy to address it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I have one quick question which I think you can answer: you began your remarks by describing these homes as workforce homes, what does that mean to you, the applicant?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded I did not describe them as workforce homes.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I shouldn’t say you but what does workforce – how do you describe workforce homes?

Mr. John Klarl stated Mr. Steimets used that in the last application.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded these are market homes and I believe the workforce reference was in the prior application, not this.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t know why I thought you said that or it came from this but okay we’re good then because at $800,000 it’s not a workforce home.  I apologize.
Mr. Ed Vergano stated by the way the bypass plans that Mr. Foley referred to, Route 6 bypass plans are available at the State if you need a contact information you can get that from my office.  The bypass refers to a sustainable development study recommendation to address the bottleneck on Route 6 through Yorktown.  As you know, you go from four lanes to two lanes, back to three and four and of course there’s a significant bottleneck that occurs in Yorktown.  The way to remedy that would be to have a parallel road somewhere north of Route 6.  One location is through this property of course through Yorktown and through this property.  That information is available.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I brought it up because that is the representative to the sustainable development committee now and many of us were stake holders years ago.  There are other bypasses that maybe Cortlandt would prefer.  There’s very little room left along Route 6 and as you know this other development we just addressed there’s a bottleneck there on both sides of the water.  Let me clear up; the new plan that you just referred to at the beginning that you gave us May 28th, that supersedes the color rendering plan obviously.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded what we’re suggesting is that we’re going to include both in the FEIS because we’re working on the overall impacts of that revision but because that plan was engineered in such a way that would address the concerns that Mr. Bianchi has I’d raised on the wetland, we’re going to put it in the FEIS and include it as a potential alternative to the plan that we have.  Both, the plan and the FEIS as well as the alternative plan however, have the same number of units and as I indicated before substantively we’ve made dramatic reductions in the project size in the appropriate places and enhanced the overall preservation of the site.  When you can take the 22.8 acre lot in the middle of the site and you add the conservation in easements, 53% of this site will remain essentially forever wild state for the lack of a better phrase.  Also, we end up with a density of about 0.4 tenths of a unit per acre as opposed to what would be contemplated by the ordinance of one unit per acre.  In other words, we’re hearing the environmental concerns, we’re hearing the concerns of the neighbors and instead of just trying to push forward with the plan that we had, we’ve made these reductions and we just wanted this Board to know that we are working hard to arriving at that appropriate balance for your consideration. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated on page, figure 2-14 in the document on the 20% slope avoidance, that pull out, I assume the way I’m reading it, is that the driveway to that unit house #6, lot #6 takes a different route and avoids the slope area.  It’s not clear to me on here.  On figure 2-16 a) the emergency access, I assume that’s to the Amherst gate that would be put up?  Where on figure 2-16 a)?  I don’t see Amherst indicated on here and I’m assuming -- now these are driveways to the #13 house.  Where is the emergency access road?  The same on figure 2-16 b).  That’s not emergency, that’s Lexington Avenue I assume on that sketch.
Mr. [1:56:59] responded 2-16 a) that’s the emergency access to lots 12 and 13, not the emergency access to Amherst.

Mr. Robert Foley asked where do you have the Amherst?

Mr. [1:57:14] responded it’s shown generally on the plan.
Mr. Robert Foley responded on the green plan, I see it.

Mr. Tim Miller - Mr. Foley, those graphics are only intended to show the turning radii of emergency vehicles using those driveways.  They’re not intended to show an emergency access connection to anywhere.  Look at the graphics carefully you’ll see that there’s a template showing an emergency vehicle moving on those driveways to ensure that there’s sufficient space for emergency vehicles to move.

Mr. Robert Foley responded so I misunderstood “emergency vehicle access.”  Again, to the so-called insignificant last page of the document on the New York State Historical, etc. archeological studies the area a potential affect APEs.  The letter which goes way back to November ’07 from the State, I’m puzzled by it and I know it was brought up at one of the hearings, at a public hearing by a resident about was an archeological study done?  And, this letter seems to be saying that “they have not received the new plan and that the AP delineation still included are not tested areas and did not include a key as to why it was not tested.  In order to complete our review this State organization recommends excluding the untested areas from the APE or require testing and subsequently they find no impact.”  I’m just curious, as a Board member, why that’s excluded.  If you look at that letter and if you’re thinking the same way I am.  I’ll submit the other comments.
Mr. Tim Miller stated areas of the site that are not proposed to be disturbed, such as the large lot in the center of the site, was not tested.  So what the State is saying “we’re good that there’s no impact as long as you basically condition your commitment that those area’s not tested will not be disturbed.”  No disturbance, no impact, that’s what they’re saying.  We’re agreeable to that because we’re not disturbing those areas.  That may not have been entirely clear.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in reference to the school bus issue, which again has been brought up by residents on Mill Court and Red Mill and the accessibility of the larger busses to get up and down the Court, there is some data and correspondence in here towards the back of the book under Appendix N: from the Traffic Consultants out of Hawthorne and also from the school system under the next Appendix S, no the one before that.  It’s still not clear.  I’ve talked to the school transportation, like I know you have, Superintendent about the safety and accessibility of the busses because it’s been brought up and I know there’s been some type of talk about it, curb cut improvement, that’s an issue with me and I’d like to see it fully explained in the document.  Busses can’t go up how’s it handle the new students walk the half mile or a mile down to an unsafe road?
Mr. Peter Lynch responded Mr. Foley that’s a point of clarification and that’s exactly what we’re looking for here tonight and thank you for the comments and we’ll make sure that these points are fully addressed in the next draft of the FEIS.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked any sense about the timing of the next draft?

Mr. Peter Lynch responded we’re a work in progress but fairly soon.  I can’t tell you next week but I would say within the next 30 days.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated there’s one response 3-14, where you’re siting to “Wikepedia” I don’t know about anybody else, but it doesn’t impress me to site to “Wikepedia,” if you’re trying to make a point there must be some better source in this world than “Wikepedia,” because that can be written by anybody.  In response 2.3 you have a detailed discussion almost of your negotiations with the Town.  My own view is that it’s not this Board’s business or place to try to get you to sell property to the Town or to be concerned about what those negotiations are.  I understand you’re responding to something that was said, to me it would suffice for you to say that that there’s no sign there’s going to be any sale because you certainly have the right as a property owner and not sell your land to the Town and to proceed with your applications.  I just don’t want to give the impression that this Board is interested in the details of your negotiations because I don’t think it would be our place to be interested in that.

Mr. Peter Lynch responded point taken.  We’re simply responding but I agree with your analysis.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated look forward to getting that.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we refer this back, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”



*



*



*




CORRESPONDENCE

Mr. Steven Kessler read the following from the agenda:

PB 12-94     a.
Undated letter (received by the Planning Division on March 25, 2009) from John Philip Raposeiro, General Manager of Applebee’s, requesting Planning Board approval of a small service bar and a DJ on the existing outdoor patio area located at Applebee’s at the Cortlandt Town Center. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I move that we approve the request of the applicant to extend the outside dining and music as stated in the applicant’s memo to Labor Day or whatever that date happens to be (9/07/09), seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”
PB 22-98    b.
Letter dated May 6, 2009 from Sonia Ferra & Angelo Fidelio requesting the 10th, 90-day re-approval of the Final Plat for the Apian Way Estates Subdivision located on Fawn Ridge Court.
Mr. Ivan Kline stated I move the adoption of resolution no. 24-09 granting this request, seconded.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked and on the question I think we’re going to ask them to come in for the next meeting to explain the need for some of the extensions.  All in favor saying “aye.” 

PB 39-06    c.
Letter dated May 11, 2009 from Percy Montes Sr. requesting the Planning Board release the $5,000 cash maintenance security for the Happy Tots Day Care Center on Radio Terrace.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I move that we adopt the resolution no. 25-09 granting their request, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 5-07      d.
Letter dated May 15, 2009 from Patsy Fraioli requesting the 1st, one-year time extension of Site Development Plan Approval for the proposed vehicle parking lot located on Crompond Road (Route 202), approximately 1,000 feet east of Croton Avenue.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I make a motion that we adopt resolution 26-09 granting that extension, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 12-94    e.
Letter dated May 14, 2009 from Lowell Farkas requesting Planning Board Approval of four (4) outdoor tables with seating for 16 people located at Panera Bread at the Cortlandt Town Center.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we approve this by motion for four (4) tables and the bollards and I believe our attending engineer at the work session said there may be a slight adjustment on the locations of the bollards, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 8-97      f.
Letter dated May 21, 2009 from Steve Chester requesting Planning Board approval for a new free-standing sign at the “Sealed with a Kiss” apparel store located at 2144 Albany Post Road (Route 9A).
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Mr. Chairman I’ll move that we approve the sign by motion, seconded.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the question architectural review has also approved the sign, so all in favor saying “aye.”  And, last on the correspondence was the addition to the agenda and that is a letter dated May 29, 2009 from Geraldine Tortarella requesting a second 90-day time extension for the final plat for the Roundtop at Montrose application.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated Mr. Chairman I move that we adopt resolution no. 27-09 granting the request, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”



*



*



*




10.
NEW BUSINESS

Mr. Steven Kessler read the following from the agenda:

PB 5-09      a.
Referral from the Town Board for a Recommendation from the Planning Board for an amendment to the Zoning Code and the Subdivision Regulations regarding not accepting applications for site development plans or preliminary layout and final  plats for subdivisions if the subject property has any outstanding violations of the Town Zoning Ordinance or Town Code.

Ms. Loretta Taylor Mr. Chairman I move that we set a public hearing for July 7th, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

PB 6-09      b.
Application of Appian Way Ventures, LLC for Site Development Plan Approval for site improvements including a gravel driveway and parking and additional landscaping for an existing industrial building on a 3.2 acre parcel of property located on Sixth Street and Madalyn Avenue as shown on a two page set of drawings entitled “Proposed Site Plan” prepared by Gemmola & Associates, LLC dated May 22, 2009 (see prior PB 26-04).

Mr. Ed Gemmola presented himself to the Board and stated representing Apian Way Ventures, LLC.  This application was before the Board in 2004 under 260 Madalyn Court and there was actually a resolution that was drafted.  The property was sold.  The present owner is utilizing the building in the same fashion with the same tenancy.   What we found from the memo was that the property needed certain variances that we applied with the Board.  We met with staff applied to the Zoning Board of Appeals.  The site was existing, non-conforming, 5 acres required and the zone was an MD zone, it’s 3.2 acres.  We had a portion of the front yard which was under the 75-foot setback on the Sixth Street side which is the eastern side of the property. We also had a building coverage a difference 25%.  The building coverage was required we were at a little over 27%, 27.08% in light of the fact that the acreage was smaller we were still very close to the values on the coverage.  A portion of the side along Madalyn where there’s an in-and-out entrance, the lower left right above the word “Madalyn” which was in the 25-foot landscape buffer which is required at the narrowest point which is the farthest left there’s an existing trash containers here that’s as close as 10 feet to the property line so this was the area in question that was in the buffer which was, again, pre-existing.  The other relief we were looking for was parking.  What we did is the building is about 18% unoccupied which 18% to 20% which is the lighter beige color and the rest of the building is a mix of wholesale manufacturing and what you have in the zone is other personal service business.  The majority of the building is based on the 1 per 300 square feet of parking.  What was required by that count if we use the count which is the calculations that are on the plan, we came up with the count of about 73 cars required for the occupied space and around just under 32 spaces required for the vacant space as of now which was 104 spaces.  What this owner proposed to the Zoning Board was 84 spaces and 15 boat storage spaces along the west end of the property.  All the grey is indicating gravel with bumper over stops which would designate where the spaces are.

Mr. Ed Vergano asked that’s 84 spaces and 15 additional boat storage spaces?

Mr. Ed Gemmola responded yes 84 plus 15 and what the owner did, I don’t have a copy here, the owner had surveyed I think about a month ago…

Mr. John Klarl stated he did the month of May.

Mr. Ed Gemmola continued and I believe there was no more than 35, 36 cars that included on Saturday possibly 9 to 10 cars.  We had felt that the type of use he had a dog kindergarten at the east part of the property, people would drop off in terms of the size of that parcel and the types of uses, the lot, basically during the day were empty.
Mr. John Klarl stated just to bring the Board up-to-date, Mr. Gemmola prepared a nice summary of the application for the Zoning Board of Appeals.  That application was heard on Wednesday, May 20th and they closed the public hearing, granted the relief that Mr. Gemmola discussed subject to Mr. Gemmola providing one dimensional item to the Board and then apparently two days later on Friday, May 22nd, the Planning Board application was filed because ordinarily if Mr. Flandreau is aware there’s both the Zoning Board application and the Planning Board application the Zoning Board might have closed but they wouldn’t have issued their decision, they would have held it and preserved for status to have coordinated review but the Zoning Board did close and they did grant the Decision and Order relief that Mr. Gemmola just described.  So, now we have our Planning Board application.

Mr. Ed Gemmola stated hopefully that background will clarify what the owner was trying to do.  The owner’s representative is here tonight if there are any questions on the tenancies.  The building is approximately 41,957 square feet.  There’s a small portion that’s the second floor here which has an access apron at the Madalyn Avenue side.  That portion of the building is approximately 41,000 square feet.  For the one-story portion the total is around 37,800 square feet so for the most part a one-story building except for that small portion in the center.  As I indicated the parking and the uses can be explained if there’s any questions by the owner’s representative.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you’re required to have 105 spaces and you’ve applied for a variance to have 84 plus 15 boats?

Mr. John Klarl responded yes that’s what the Board granted.  84 parking, 15 boat spaces.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked and why do you only think 5 spaces for employee parking?  I guess I’m a little confused by that.

Mr. Ed Gemmola asked why do we only have 5 spaces for employee parking?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes.

Mr. Ed Gemmola answered there’s a manager on the site and in terms of the employee parking was at the individual garage doors that was part of a spot that could be moved.  Whereas, if you park in front of a garage door which is not used all the time it would be an employee parking if they had access the overhead door that they would be able to move that vehicle.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated since we’ve just received this and the staff will review this and issue their review memorandum we’ll also spend our time reviewing it as well while we’ll bring this back when staff is ready to come back.

Mr. Ed Gemmola asked subsequently to that there’d be a site inspection?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded yes.  We’d like to have a review memorandum first so that we know what the issues are.

Mr. John Klarl stated we’ll give a copy of the Zoning Board of Appeals Decision and Order to the Board.
Ms. Susan Todd stated I would like to make a motion that we refer this back to staff, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”

Mr. Steven Kessler read the following from the agenda:
PB 7-09      c.
Application of Congregation Yeshiva Ohr Hameir for Site Development Plan Approval and for Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for construction of a new on-site wastewater treatment plant and for the renovation/reconstruction of the existing Dodge City Building for classroom and dormitory space located on a 37.32 acre parcel of property at 141 Furnace Woods Road as shown on a drawing entitled  “Site Plan prepared for Yeshiva Ohr Hameir” dated May 21, 2009 prepared by Ralph Mastromonaco, P.E. and a drawing entitled “Renovation/Reconstruction: Dodge City Building” prepared by KG&D Architects, dated May 21, 2009. 
Mr. David Steinmetz stated representing Yeshiva Ohr Hameir.  With me this evening Rabbi Yacov Rothberg, the Executive Director of the Yeshiva, Dan Ciarcia from Ralph Mastromonaco Engineering, Tim Miller from Tim Miller Associates, our environmental consultants Russ Davidson and Meg Henry from KGD Architects and my partner Dan Richmond is here as well.  We have a new application as you all know, you’ve all received our submission but I want to explain precisely what it’s for, why we filed it and the status of the original application.  But, before I do, I kind of feel in order for all of this to make sense in the context, I want to go backwards.  I want you to understand what the Yeshiva has been doing since we were last here which is literally more than a year.  When last we left off with you we were addressing how to deal with on site sewage issues.  It was a critical issue.  We had an option to potentially connect to a sewer line to construct a sewage treatment plant or to improve the existing septic system and since it was made fairly clear to my client that connecting to the Steven’s Lane pump station was not going to happen without a dispute and after studying the challenges and the costs of all the various options, the Yeshiva decided to work with the County Health Department and our team to upgrade its septic system.  We have literally spent the last year and some of the Town staff is well aware exploring ways and spending a tremendous amount of time, money and effort to upgrade, repair and replace portions of the septic system.  The septic system is really multiple improvements dating back to the Dude Ranch days.  It’s got a series of north and south fields and the decision was made to explore not pursuing the full build out of the Yeshiva.  The full build out being the original application that was presented to you of a number of different new buildings.  The concept was to simply renovate and reconstruct the Dodge City building which many of you may know as the old brown unoccupied building kind of in the center of the site near the parking area and we were going to upgrade the septic system to accommodate the use for the Yeshiva.  The Yeshiva spent roughly $300,000 in repairs, upgrades, professional fees, pumping its septic system, etc.  And, only recently did the Yeshiva learn that the system cannot be repaired satisfactorily.  That was my client’s goal and we were unable to reach that goal.  So, on May 22nd, Deputy Commissioner of the County Health Department, Leonard Meyerson wrote a letter to the DEC and I, tonight at your work session I found out you all got that.  He wrote a letter to the DEC with a copy to Wasson, a copy to the Town concluding that the septic system upgrade is just simply not feasible.  As a result, the Yeshiva has decided now to pursue the construction of an on-site sewage treatment plant.  This plant as we’re going to talk about briefly tonight and as we go forward with this application basically a small building with various tanks and filters and the pertinence is some of which are above-ground, some of which are below ground all of which must be reviewed and approved by the Westchester County Health Department as to those installations and the discharge from this plant into the intermittent stream on the Yeshiva’s property is regulated by the New State DEC.  We’ve already filed that initial application with the DEC with a SPDES permit.  A SPDES permit is the State Regulatory mechanism for allowing discharge from the sewage treatment plant and importantly, hopefully you all saw it in your packet, Commissioner Meyerson, Westchester County’s Deputy Commissioner of Health said in his letter “in my own engineering assessment this is the best solution to a serious problem.  I request that you make this permit application a priority item.”  And he’s written that letter to DEC, copied us, copied the Town.  We know we have a serious issue that needs to be addressed.  We know that we have something that needs to made a priority.  Currently, the septic system is being frequently pumped under the watchful eye of the Department of Health and that’s why now we’re back here with this application.  We need to construct the sewage treatment plant and we need to move forward.  The original application is being placed on hold because it’s been filed, it’s been pending, it’s been held in the balance and we will withdraw that application upon securing approvals for this application.  If you want to go into the detailed reasons, I know the question came up at the work session, I will tell you we’ve discussed why we’re holding that application in the balance with Town Council, they are aware of it, and unlike a situation where an applicant Mr. Klein might be pursuing two applications simultaneously, we’re not pursuing two applications simultaneously, we are clearly taking that application, we’ve definitively stated in our submission that it is to be held in the balance so we have no need to process it and I have an expectation that in short order we will be able to withdraw it.  Let me explain this application very briefly with that as background.  The Yeshiva is not proposing the full build out of the site that we had in front of you previously.  Instead, this application really is for three things: 1) we need to locate the sewage treatment plant improvements on the site, which we’ll talk about, 2) we’re seeking to renovate and reconstruct the Dodge City building, and 3) we need from your Board a wetlands permit for work that’s being done in the wetland buffer.  The sewage treatment plant is going to be located on an area that’s already disturbed then when you come out, if you do a site inspection which I hope we will be doing shortly, you will see that it’s going to be constructed on an area that’s presently an impermeable concrete slab in the wetland buffer.  Virtually all of that slab is going to be removed if this application is granted, 50% or more of that area will be vegetative as part of this application restoring it to more productive use.  The DEC has exclusive jurisdiction over the discharge limits.  We’ve made our SPDES permit application.  We are waiting now for the DEC to give us draft discharge limits.  As Mr. Vergano can explain and confirm, no sewage, no chemicals gets discharged into the stream from the sewage treatment plant.  No chemicals, no sewage comes out of the sewage treatment plant.  I’m certain that there are downstream neighbors that are concerned about the discharges and they have every right to ask legitimate and appropriate and rational questions.  To that I would say three things: 1) they have probably far more to fear from the literally dozens of aging septic systems that currently exist between the Yeshiva’s property and where downstream property owners may be, 2) our proposed sewage treatment plant is 50% of the system already operated in this part of the Town by Valeria in terms of gallonage and output, and lastly 3) some facts that Mr. Sciarcia located today the Blue Mountain Middle School and the adjacent elementary school, both of those properties we learned are on surface discharges.  There are 1,050 students in those school buildings utilizing the facilities, plus staff, plus visitors discharging into the watershed.  Dodge City very briefly is going to be renovated and reconstructed in its current location however as we pointed out in our submission letter we’re reducing the actual size and footprint.  As you’re going to see momentarily the footprint remains intact with the exception that there is an open-air vestibule or courtyard in the middle of the building that Russ Davidson has designed.  It’s attractive and functional for light and air as a result of which the square footage of this building goes down as does the footprint.  Occupancy: although the original application that we had before you was to accommodate 254 students, and you’ll recall an October 29th affidavit that Rabbi Rothberg submitted documenting the various student population over an eight year period, this application represents a voluntary agreement by the Yeshiva to cap the student occupancy at 225.  This is entirely in accordance with the April 5th, 2007 memo written by the Cortlandt Building Department in which it was determined that there is a special permit that’s in existence for this site and this would not represent an expansion of any of the buildings.  It would only represent a reduction of square footage and a reduction or a cap in student population.  What I would like to do now is hand the mike and computer over to Russ Davidson and Meg Henry to just show you the renovation and reconstruction of Dodge City.  I think it’s important because it’s really the only construction activity relative to the Yeshiva dormitory and classroom space that we’re now presenting as part of this application.  
Mr. Russ Davidson stated we put together some images which I think will help explain the project.  This is a site plan that shows the existing the Dodge City building is the large rectangle in the center, the white rectangle on the upper right is the concrete pad where the sewage treatment plant will be located, it’s a former barn building.  That’s the footprint of the proposed building that will take its place.  It is exactly on the footprint.  We actually hope to reuse a good portion of the foundations and lower floor walls of the existing building.  This is a 3D computer model, some still shots.  This is of the entrance.  This is an aerial view looking over the Dakota building.  If you could be way up in the air above Furnace Woods Road, that’s the building in the background and that’s the proposed.  That’s the existing building and here is the proposed building.  As David mentioned we are cutting this part away you’ll see it’s a solid building and the new building actually has less coverage because it has that u-shaped courtyard but the outside walls are exactly on the footprint of the existing building.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked same height?

Mr. Russ Davidson responded two-story building, yes same height.  You can see the baseline.  We’re keeping the footprint the same whereas right now there’s an overhang that has columns that come down.  We actually won’t be using the columns but there will be a slight overhang as you can see.  The stairs will overhang and a little gable ends will project similar to the projections of the existing balcony.  If we continue around, there’s the existing building from above the wetlands and the proposed building.  It does have a shaped roof, slightly higher roof pitch but it does match up with the Chalet building, the Dallas building, and some of the existing dining hall building.  It is still within Code required height limitations.  Looking from the Chalet, the existing building and the proposed building.  We’re getting close to the end of our fly around here.  This is if you could be well above Furnace Woods Road looking over the dining hall, you’d have to be flying to see it from this view and that’s the proposed building.  This shows a closer view of the existing and proposed building, there you can see the courtyard and again existing and proposed.  When you come back out we’re also proposing to do improvements to the Dakota building and the entrance to the dining hall that would look something like this including the landscaping and a new canopy, a reconstruction of the porch.  We had an artist do a different rendering of this so you can see that it’s going to be a significant improvement.  This is what it looks like now and this is what it’ll look like when it’s done.  The other thing that’s important about this view is you cannot see the reconstructed building behind it from the road.  Even with the slightly higher roof lines, it is not visible from the road and we think it’s an improvement from the exterior view and a reconstruction of the Dodge City building for a combination of dormitories and religious instruction so that the students will have an appropriate amount of space.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked did you say you were also going to fix up the Dakota building?
Mr. Russ Davidson responded yes.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated your application talks about Dodge but you’re also now talking about Dakota.

Mr. Russ Davidson responded it probably should include the….

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s because it’s really not part of the site plan necessarily, it’s really a building permit issue.  That’s an existing building, correct me if I’m wrong, that’s really a building permit issue.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated it doesn’t involve any demolition just façade changes?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded just façade changes.  We’ve identified it by no means we want you to be very well aware about it because it’s only a positive in connection with the application but there’s no site plan issue associated with that.

Mr. Steven Kessler we’ll leave it to staff to determine whether it should be part of the application.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated to defend ourselves the reason it’s not part of the application it was never told to us that they were going to making improvements to the Dakota building or it would have been on the agenda.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we did discuss it but I guess Mr. Kehoe was not part of that staff discussion because we’ve always indicated it but we’ll clarify that and certainly indicate a supplement.  As far as Russ’s comment about the visibility from Furnace Woods Road, this is very valuable and we want to definitely make use of that when we take you out on the site walk because when you’re out on the site walk you can really get a better sense visually of what can and cannot see from the street frontage.  I just want to make one comment about the proposed renovation of Dodge City.  The Yeshiva has not made a final decision of the exact floor plan.  A typical floor plan was presented.  It’s unclear whether there are going to be five classrooms on the lower level, or three, or two so that type of thing is being finalized but suffice it to say that the square footage is precise and the student cap is precise and in terms of the action items that we’re asking for you to deal with tonight, I’ve certainly been in front of this Board enough times over 20 years that I know when you’re here on new business, typically a matter simply gets referred to staff.  This is a unique situation and I’ve discussed this with Council.  We have a situation now where we have a serious issue with regard to addressing the sewage treatment plant.  We have a letter that you’ve been provided from the Westchester County Department of Health to the New York State DEC categorizing this as a priority item.  This is a fairly defined application at this point.  All we’re asking is the following: 1) I would ask you to declare your intent to designate yourselves lead agency under SEQRA and circulate, that’s not unusual for you to do on night one.  You’ve got your EAF.  You’ve got your materials.  The only agency that’s actually going to be issuing a clear and definitive permit is DEC, Westchester County DOH reviews the operation and the pertinences associated with the treatment plant but Dan, we don’t actually get a permit from County DOH do we?
Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded of course you do.  You get a permit to construct it.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated so County DOH would have to get a circulation.  DEC would get a circulation. 2) We would ask you to schedule a site inspection on the June 28th date that I know you’re going out on another matter or matters and the last thing we would ask you to schedule a public hearing for the July meeting.  We believe that this is an application that for wetlands permitting purposes does require a public hearing and we think you have a sufficient amount of information before you to begin the public hearing process at the July meeting.  

Mr. Steven Kessler asked is the DOH satisfied with that you’ve stabilized the situation at Yeshiva?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’m glad you asked that question.  Deputy Commissioner Meyerson says “currently it is only by frequent evacuation by septic haulers that overflows are averted.”  He has concluded that we have stabilized and there are no issues with regard to the septic system.  You should know that we are pumping at the Yeshiva now on a very regular basis.  And, that’s after an untold amount of time, money and effort was spent with DOH and its staff over the last year devising, presenting and submitting various iterations of repairs and upgrades to the septic system.  They were cautiously optimistic as were we and that was not successful.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked Mr. Steinmetz will you have if your request is considered and granted at the next meeting, will you have sufficient details about the sewage treatment plant itself to provide to us? 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked Mr. Bianchi so that I’m clear what aspect?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi responded the design of the plant, the characteristics of the flow.  Will you be at that point in your design?  I’ve seen the cut sheets and that’s all.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s the system.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked I thought there were some more calculations.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the detailed calculations and the affluent – the discharge from the sewage treatment plant actually is reviewed, Mr. Bianchi, by DEC.  We’re actually going to get that from DEC is the discharge, the draft discharge limits.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked you’re buying this plant per the specifications basically a package?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded correct.  It is a package plant.  It is basically what you’re looking at.  It’s identified in the background of Mr. Davidson’s illustration up there in the top right.  We will take you out when we go out there.  But, in terms of the discharge limits, that’s really not this application.  This application – what Mr. Miller is pointing out is that we are discharging to an intermittent stream.  That means we have to discharge to intermittent stream standards which is the highest, most significantly regulated discharge.  That will be examined by DEC.  The operation of the plant will be examined by the County DOH.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked when do you expect to have the limits from the DEC?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I’m hoping that we’ll have it before the public hearing, if the public hearing is conducted in July.  Regardless, any approval from your Board, should we get an approval from this Board, it would be unquestionably, expressly conditioned upon our receipt of County Health sign-off, DEC SPDES permit and obviously following all of the conditions and the protocols that they impose.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so one of the things that you’re asking for is wetland permit, what’s the extent of the treatment plant in the wetlands?

Mr. David Steinmetz asked physically, the size and the area of it?

Mr. Tim Miller responded the treatment plant is not in the wetland, it’s actually going to be built on an existing slab, on the buffer and on one of the earlier drawings that Russ had up there, it showed the area of that slab.  I’m not sure what the square footage of the slab is but the treatment plant is actually smaller than the slab.  So, the slab in its entirety will be removed.  That portion of the slab is not necessary to support the treatment plant and will be returned to a grass condition and the only disturbance to the wetland itself will be a trench to put the discharge pipe out to the stream.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I just want to make sure that we have all of the facts if we’re going to have a public hearing.  You’re asking for a public hearing for a wetland permit and you have an existing slab, and you’re proposing to keep a portion of that slab.

Mr. Tim Miller responded we’re taking the entire slab out actually.  The entire slab will be removed and the new plant will be installed on its own foundation. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on a new slab?

Mr. Tim Miller responded on its own foundation.
Mr. Steven Kessler asked so my question is exactly how much of that treatment plant is going to be in the wetland buffer?  I think if you’re asking for a permit I think we need to know the extent of the invasiveness of what you’re proposing.

Mr. Tim Miller responded I don’t have the answer but that’s a pretty straight up answer.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked are you just asking for the square footage of the improvements?  You said “how much of the sewage treatment plant is in the wetland?”
Mr. Steven Kessler stated you’re looking for a wetland permit which means you are going to have some kind of structure within the wetland to the wetland buffer and I want to know how much of the facility is going to be within the wetland buffer.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the reason why we’re struggling with this and we’re trying to get Mr. Ciarcia to furnish us with the answer is because it’s several different components that make up the totality.  Some are above ground, some are below.  There’s one small house-like structure. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated whatever it is, all I’m saying is if you want a public hearing you have to come with the facts that are going to say whether it is a minimal disturbance or an extensive disturbance and we’ll have to make an opinion based upon that.

Mr. Tim Miller responded the total amount of the square footage of the – there’s a small concrete building, it’s about 400 square feet, and then there’s a number of components that vary between 40 to 80 square feet.  The total number would be less than 1,000 square feet of disturbance in the buffer.  We would ask for a wetland permit that would involve less than 1,000 square feet of new construction in the wetland buffer and then the linear length of the pipe…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but also, prior to the public hearing we need just some in general information there are criteria’s for approval of issuance of the wetland permits, chapter 179-6.  So, you answer those questions.

Mr. Tim Miller stated I would ask that the Board waive that requirement and we are taking out a slab in the buffer and replacing it with something that’s on the order of 25% of that area and we’re returning that buffer to natural condition.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but those are answers to the questions.  If those were the answers you gave to the criteria questions, you’re answering the questions.

Mr. Tim Miller stated I’m asking that the Board waive that requirement at this time and if the answer is no, then if it’s no, then I’ll give you more information but we’re improving the buffer.  That’s our request.  We’re making a request to improve the wetland buffer by taking out a slab and putting in a much smaller structure. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but can we have the empirical evidence of that?  Is that too much to ask?

Mr. Tim Miller responded we have the site plan that shows you.  
Mr. Steven Kessler stated no, but numbers, tables.  You produce these things Tim all the time in terms of a table that says “here’s the current disturbance…”

Mr. Tim Miller asked if I don’t give you this tonight are we still going to be able to get…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m not saying tonight.  I’m just saying when you come for a public hearing have all the facts.

Mr. Tim Miller responded I was concerned that we were…

Mr. Steven Kessler stated this is good.  This is new business.  We’re not here to get all the details.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Mr. Chairman, if for any reason you don’t have those answers then obviously the public hearing would not be convened.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we just need them a couple of weeks before the public hearing.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we’ll have it to you probably by the end of the week.

Mr. John Klarl stated or if the public hearing was open it might not be closed.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated and also information as to what’s going to happen to the current septic system, what the plans are there would be helpful as well.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded understood.

Ms. Susan Todd stated also, when we go on our site visit I would like to see the discharge point for this. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated Susan, you actually took the line that I was going to make sure everybody was clear.  What we’re going to do, we talked about in preparing for the site inspection, we’re going to flag for you the route of the pipe as it goes through the buffer and into the wetland area and then bring you right to the point of discharge. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked anything else that people want to see if we proceed with the public hearing for the next meeting?  Or anything they want to see on the site visit?
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated or either that or at the meeting before the meeting is.  Again, on the package system what are the estimated flows?  I’m not sure if that’s included in the sheet that you gave me.  What are the estimated flows that come out of that pipe, on average?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded the answer to your question, Mr. Bianchi is 23,000 gallons per day (gpd).

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated that’s the maximum capacity though.  Is that the actual flow?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded there is no actual flow right now.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated when it’s in place.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked the actual flow of what the plant would be?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated the effluent, yes.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded the flow that’s used for the design is based upon numbers the DEC publishes for certain types of uses, student population, staff and so forth.  So, our flow may be less than that but our basis is going to be the DEC guideline numbers.  Those numbers have to be agreed to by the Health Department and the DEC.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked what goes in must come.  You have 225 students, what’s the estimated – you don’t have to do it now, I’m just saying what’s the output?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded theoretically it’s 23,000.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked per day?  You’re just saying that.  That’s been calculated? 

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded there’s two separate things at play here, one’s the actual flow we may see, right now I can tell you the flow is reduced because they’ve been employing all types of water saving practices.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m not talking about right now, I’m talking about the future.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated well the future you project and the way you project is you use the numbers that DEC feels are valid.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated but it’s got to be tied to the number of people that are using it.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded yes, it’s going to be tied to the population of the students, the staff and any of the residential buildings for staff as well.  But, it’s following a methodology to predict the flows that the DEC accepts.  So, that’s where the 23,000 comes from.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated there will be 23,000 gallons per day of effluent being discharged? 

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded that’s the design of the plan. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so my original question what is actually coming out the pipe?
Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded we don’t know that.  It’s going to be less than 23,000 but the regulators of…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated but you must be able to arrive at a design quantity based on what goes in will come out. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you know that the 23,000 is the maximum capacity right, and you know that you have 225 students, so you must have some estimate as to what percentage or capacity this plant will operating at.  

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded well if you use the number it comes out to 23,000, but it’s going to be less than that. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you have no additional capacity for the number of students and staff that you propose at the Yeshiva?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded well the numbers themselves are conservative. 

Mr. Tim Miller stated there’s not going to be any additional permitted capacity and that’s all what this is based on is the permitted capacity. 
Mr. Steven Kessler stated I guess we’re going to do this at the public hearing and this is not a public hearing.  All I’m saying is let’s make sure we have all the numbers, all the facts when we meet so that we can have all these questions answered in terms of the capacity of the plant, what your expectation that will be generated by the number of students.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated the Health Department actually involves themselves in this process because they have to agree to the flow based upon our use of the property.  In the final analysis, the Health Department may say the number should be a little higher and that’s entirely possible.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so does that mean a bigger plant?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded it wouldn’t be noticeable.  If anything has to get bigger.  If it goes from 23 to 24.  It’s the size of the processes – it’s not noticeable but yes some of the things would get a little bigger potentially.  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated if you’re asking us to approve something we’d like to know what size you’re proposing that’s going to meet the DEC’s requirements for the population that you have. 

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded that’s what I said, the numbers we’ve used follow all the DEC guidelines so I don’t think there’ll be a problem.  I don’t see why there should be when we followed all of their criteria in determining the size.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked will you lay out the arithmetic for us the next time?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded we will definitely resolve this before we come back so we don’t have this.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked anything else we need to request or seek?
Mr. Ed Vergano stated ordinarily, of course staff is given opportunity to put together a review memo and we have a chance to think about it.  We need time for that obviously.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so are you suggesting that we’re not ready for a public hearing? 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that’s exactly what he’s saying. 

Mr. Ed Vergano stated I’m respectful of the fact that this is an emergency and that your happen to move the application along but in my opinion, there’s a number of issues that we need to evaluate, that we need to ask them to clarify.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated in a formal review memo?

Mr. Ed Vergano stated in a formal review memo as we do with every other application.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we would ask, Mr. Chairman, especially since Mr. Vergano has been aware of this application since we filed it and this is the first I’m hearing of that and I must say, I’m extremely surprised to be hearing it here and now.  If there’s anything we can do Ed to meet with you or your staff, any outside engineers that you need and Chris, anyone else, we’re ready to do so.  Lenny Meyerson has told us, he’s told the DEC and he’s told you as well, we have to deal with this.  This is a priority item.  So, I would hope that between now, with all due respect, and the July 7th Planning Board meeting you can get your information from us.  We’ll supply you with everything you need and we can open a public hearing on July 7th.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated my guess would be if we open a public hearing that day, it’s not going to ultimately save you any time.  We’re just going to be struggling with catching up on things.  All we’ll have done is open a public hearing early but it won’t get you to a close of a public hearing any sooner.  How long would it take from the time you had an approval to actually implement it?
Mr. David Steinmetz responded that’s an excellent question that we actually discussed, Mr. Kline.  This is the type of thing that you have to order and it’s not like you pull it off the shelf.  There are certain pieces that have to be put together and special ordered.  We’re not going to go out and spend hundreds of thousands of dollars and recommend that the Yeshiva spend hundreds of thousands of dollars and order this plant until it’s approved.  We’re trying to hasten moving this along.  I fully appreciate, Mr. Kline, your concern that maybe opening it doesn’t necessarily mean closing it.  I don’t want to be pessimistic on day one, I want to be as optimistic as we can be. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that didn’t answer the question.  How long does it take from the time you decide okay, we’re now going ahead with this plant?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded three months to get the materials delivered.  Two to three months to get it delivered and then a couple of months to get it installed. 

Mr. John Klarl asked so from an approval it takes another six months?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded maybe not six.  I’ll be optimistic. 

Mr. John Klarl stated four to six?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded at the risk of not answering Mr. Kline’s question I’d say four rather than six.  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated it sounds like you may not be in a position to order until you work things out with the Department of Health anyway because you don’t know what you’re ordering. 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded it would be irrational to do that.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated not to be cavalier but you’re stuck with what the situation you’ve got for quite some time to go.  This frequent pumping out and I don’t know that it makes sense for this Board to not give its staff the chance to do the normal review here and I understand the wanting to move this as fast as possible, to in effect try to save a few weeks.  I don’t think you will even save a few weeks at the end of the day.  You say you’ve stabilized the situation and if you hadn’t you couldn’t have any students there anymore.  I don’t know what the point really is. 

Mr. David Steinmetz responded I hear you Mr. Kline, I’m still confused on what Mr. Vergano’s missing and what his issue is. 

Mr. Ed Vergano responded I’ve not evaluated this.  I have to take a look at the plans.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated no one’s going to stop you Ed from evaluating.  We’ve offered to provide you from the moment we made this decision with everything we could so you could evaluate it.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated in fairness to him this application came in 10 days ago from what I’m seeing.  It’s kind of hard to say that we should now…

Mr. Tim Miller it’s a pretty modest application.  It’s a sewage treatment plant.
Mr. Ivan Kline responded it’s not just a sewage treatment plant.  It’s a site plant change that goes with it. 

Mr. David Steinmetz asked are we talking about the Dodge City building now or are you talking about the plan?  Because, honestly Ed is not reviewing the discharge, DEC is reviewing the discharge.  We want to make sure that your Engineering Department has everything they need.  Nobody’s trying to get a plant built that’s not properly regulated and properly supervised and properly permitted.  But, I don’t believe that the discharge limits get set, correct me if I’m wrong, and I’ve discussed this with Ed, so I’m definitely puzzled.  The discharge limits from this sewage treatment plant are not set by the Town Engineer of the Town of Cortlandt.  They’re set by the New York State DEC.  We’re already applying for it.  We told him we were applying for it.  He knew it.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated it just seems to me there are a number of questions that exist and a number of things that have been raised it’s not going to do you any good even to rush the start of this public hearing and all we’re going to have is an unproductive public hearing.  That’s my best guess. 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked any other comments?

Ms. Susan Todd stated I certainly feel that way.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think we need the time to read the materials that are going to be generated and consider them and move forward after that point, but I don’t think we’re ready.

Ms. Susan Todd stated I also feel like the idea that we have to make some decisions so they can get a new sewage treatment plant is really not our problem.  I think we need to make the best decision based on the facts and we don’t have the facts yet.  They don’t even know the facts.  We need more time.  We need to get the facts and we need to study them and we need to make a good decision.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked Bob?

Mr. Robert Foley stated yes, I agree.  I made a note here about this public hearing and I was going to ask the question anyway since I’m doing the motion here. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated given the nature to this application and its history it’s better to be safe than sorry and give it the time it needs.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think that the mere fact that Ed might have been aware of the fact that they were going to apply for the sewage treatment plan is one thing, having the specifics on this site and what it requires to operate the site to make the plant successfully is another and they didn’t have this information.  It’s like I’m going to go over here and I want to do this but I didn’t give you any specifics so what was he supposed to do?  I don’t understand what the expectation was.  Just because you know that he’s going to apply for it doesn’t necessarily mean you have the specific facts that you need to evaluate what he’s doing.  I think we all need to step back a little bit and get the facts, put them down on paper, let us read them and then we can move forward much more quickly than not. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I don’t think there’s any problem declaring our intent declaring our intent to be lead agencies, that’s just a normal thing to do.  Schedule a site inspection.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated yes that’s standard.  

Mr. David Steinmetz asked just so we’re clear, could we be told exactly what Mr. Vergano needs us to supply because my team is sitting here. 

Mr. Ivan Kline stated why doesn’t Mr. Vergano tell you that after the meeting tomorrow or something, it’s 11:00 if we could just pass that.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated even with the first application, you gave us this very big book of all the information and you know, we have an EAF, and we have some nice brochures but there’s nothing else much that we have.

Mr. Tim Miller stated there’s nothing else to give you.  This is a site plan for a sewage treatment plant on the ground. The Town does not regulate the sewage treatment plant, it does not regulate its operation, it doesn’t regulate it’s discharge, it’s a septic system that the State Health or the County…
Mr. Steven Kessler stated but certainly where the site plan and where it goes on the site is something we decide. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we’ve given you that.  Let’s take a step back because it’s unfortunately not occurring as cooperatively as we all would like and I know you’re not trying to be uncooperative.  There’s no question we’re trying to move this along and Ms. Todd, you’re right.

Ms. Susan Todd stated you’re pressuring us.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we’re pressuring you for a number of really good reasons.  I’d ask you to consider not rolling your eyes at that Susan, honestly.  

Mr. Robert Foley stated this is long and this has been adjourned for many months the original application. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s been adjourned Mr. Foley for many months because my client in an attempt to cooperate with the Town, neighbors and wishes that were made very clear, did everything that they rationally could to try to fix a septic system at a cost of $300,000.  We’ve now gotten to a point after meeting with the Town, the County, and the State that we now realize we can’t do that.  The urgency is simply that currently we have a facility that according to our own County Health Department here has told us needs to be addressed as a priority item.  Nobody’s trying to get an approval from you that’s not right, that’s not appropriate, the only thing I’m still confused by and Tim said it real well and bluntly, you are permitting the location of the plant.  The discharge is not being permitted by the Town of Cortlandt.  Correct us if we’re wrong.  If we’re missing that let us know.  But, in our conversations with the County and the State, Mr. Vergano is not setting the discharge limitations.  He’s going to get all of that information just like we are.  We’re actually waiting to get that from DEC.  As I’ve said to Mr. Chairman’s question a half an hour ago, I’m hoping we actually have the discharge limits by the July meeting.  The purpose of opening a public hearing, look let’s be frank this application…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked when you get the discharge limits is it possible that that changes the location of where the discharge occurs?

Mr. David Steinmetz asked where the discharge occurs?  Mr. Ciarcia says no and quite definitively.  It’s going in this place.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated subject to the DEC’s approval.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded exactly and so you all understand.  As I said, this is an intermittent stream.  In lay terms there’s not water flowing through there all the time as a result we have to regulate it and we have to address it to the highest standards because it’s not getting diluted and flushed out the way maybe Valeria’s does or maybe the 1,050 students over at the middle school and the elementary school surface discharge does, I don’t know.  I know the stream classifications there are different.  They’re a C and we’re a D.  We have the highest level that we have to satisfy DEC.  I want to be clear because I don’t want you to leave and be wondering why was David pushing so hard on having a public hearing?  Very simple, very frank.  This application, we all know, has a long history.  This application, we all know, has people still sitting here at 11:00 at night who are interested in it.  Frankly, let them have their say at a public hearing.  Let’s get that under way and let’s address it.  The longer that that gets delayed the more you’re in effect prejudicing my client.  Let’s get that stuff done because quite frankly the public comment on this is not going to address the affluent discharge. That’s going to be address by the DEC.  I’m not sure what you’re concerned with in terms of the public hearing.  What do I want to do?  I want to know that we’ve satisfied a statutory pre-condition.  There’s a statutory pre-condition that I conduct a wetlands public hearing, not even a site plan public hearing.  That’s your custom, your own ordinance.  I don’t believe it mandates a public hearing on every site plan application.  But, we have to do a wetlands public hearing so let’s do it.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated you also have the reconstruction of the building that you just spent 15 minutes showing us that’s part of your application too.  You have a site plan application.  If I thought you were in a situation the way it occasionally an applicant is where they absolutely need the approval exactly a month from now so they can do something two days there after and avoid some extreme prejudice but you are six months out from an approval date to at best get your facility in and get off this pumping system you’re on now and you’ve been on the pumping system since the Dude Ranch but certainly in this critical stage it’s been a whole year that this thing has been adjourned.  I just don’t understand why now it’s so critical.  If the determination from the County had been 10 days later, you wouldn’t have been on this agenda. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m not so sure about that.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that didn’t place us on the agenda.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated well something suddenly prompted you to make an application on May 22, because you suddenly realized you had to abandon the hope of working with your septic system.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we were in close contact with the County and we urged them to…

Mr. Ivan Kline continued if it had happened 10 days later you would have had to abandon that idea and you wouldn’t even have been on this agenda.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded right now, just so you understand because I’m sure you’re expressing your befuddlement clearly, my client is spending a lot of money to pump on a regular basis.  My client is a non-for-profit religious educational institution.  I’m not here tonight to have a RILUPA discussion, but I’ve got to tell you I feel like I’m doing my client a disservice if I don’t remind you what I know Mr. Klarl has told you and that is unfortunately maybe for you but fortunately for my client, you are legally supposed to have a degree of leniency on an application like this.  You’re supposed to be helping and facilitating and in trying to impede in opening a public hearing on locating a small house and a tank and a filter in a wetland buffer, that’s what we’re talking about, I want to address your comment about Dodge City Mr. Kline I would ask you when you get a chance to have a conversation with Mr. Klarl about the Peckham decision that both he and Mr. Vergano and Mr. Wood brought to my attention.  This is basically a simple reconstruction and renovation of an existing building much like what you did on the Peckham application where an application came before you and was approved by resolution.  I’m not asking you to do anything out of the ordinary.  Once again, I conferred with your professional staff on that aspect.  This is a large kitchen renovation in my opinion because basically we are taking the existing structure and we’re renovating it and we’re actually making it smaller, reducing its square and reducing its footprint again, a reduction in impact, not an increase.  Just so you’re clear, I would definitely Ivan suggest you talk to John about that.

Mr. Ivan Kline asked construction not in use right?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that’s correct.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated if this had been the first time that we’d heard this application and we’re going to take a structure not in use and we’re going to reconstruct it and now use it I think we would get a review memo and review it.
Mr. David Steimets stated I commend you to take a look at the Peckham situation.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated it’s not happening in the next five minutes.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated because that was brought to my attention by your Council. 

Mr. John Klarl stated that was a Zoning Board of Appeals Decision and Order, the Peckham about taking down some of the Peckham building down at the plant and what they were allowed to do with or without the site plan approval.  Mr. Flandreau and I worked on that.  It set parameters for when you had to get a site plan approval when you were taking down a building and rebuilding part of the building.  We have to look at the language.  I don’t think there was some fight over the majority.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated on a simple reconstruction on an identical footprint with a reduction footprint you had an expedited review of a building that’s precisely what we have here.  We have a reconstruction and a renovation of an existing building on the same footprint.  We’re not seeking to be treated differently from the way another applicant was just so you’re aware.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’ll go back and take a look at the Peckham case.

Mr. John Klarl stated we can have Chris circulate a copy of the Zoning Board of Appeals D&O.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated because we discussed but that’s a critical issue because what I think Mr. Steinmetz is saying is that we would advertise the public hearing not for site plan approval it would only be advertising it for a wetland permit.  I believe that he’s had conversation with Mr. Wood about that, but that should something that the Planning Board is comfortable with about Peckham and how we proceed and how we advertise with a public hearing. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I don’t want to let Chris put words into my mouth, I know you don’t mean to do that by any means.  We have absolutely no objection.  Advertise it how ever you wish.  We’re not trying to hide what we’re doing to the Dodge City building.  In fact, I’m so thrilled that Russ Davidson and Meg Henry made it here because I wanted them to show you.  We did this because we wanted  you to see what Dodge City.  We’re not trying to hide it or prohibit anyone from commenting on it Chris.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if you’re going to advertise that then we’re going to need information about materials, which I’m not saying you can’t provide us but we’re going to need information about materials, architectural elevations which is not going to be hard for you to produce, we’re going to want information about what the landscaping you’re proposing.  I mean, it would be a site plan application.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated your own application says you’re making a site plan approval application.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded didn’t say otherwise.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated wouldn’t we hold a hearing on a site plan approval?  You asked for a site plan approval I think we should hold a site plan hearing.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you were saying that the public hearing would only be on the wetland permit.
Mr. David Steinmetz responded I didn’t say that.  I said going back, what I said was I believe under your Code the only mandatory public hearing is on your wetland.  Correct me if I’m wrong John?

Mr. John Klarl responded I think that was close to what you said before.  When you were highlighting three items you said we need a wetland permit which requires a public hearing.  I don’t know if you said it to the exclusive of anything else, but you certainly said it for the wetland.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded all I can do is ask guys.  I am not trying to bang your head against the wall anymore than I feel I’m banging mine against the wall.

Mr. John Klarl stated the request is on the table.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked what’s the sense of the Board?

Mr. Robert Foley asked I don’t know how if it’s a one month difference how that adversely really impacts you with this sewer plant proposal?
Mr. Steven Kessler stated the issue is, David, if we do have the public hearing it may go more than one hearing, right?  

Mr. David Steinmetz stated when you’re starting it in July.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I know but there are also as if past is any predictor of the future, David, you also will say “we’ve heard everything, let’s close the public hearing.”

Mr. David Steimets stated you know I’m going to say that and I know what you’re going to say.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded you do indeed.  We’ve been doing this too long.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I don’t see again, I’m going to leave here and I’m going to drive home and I’m going to say to myself “I don’t know why they wouldn’t schedule a public hearing?  Is there a wall that bars people from coming to the mike and speaking.”  Honestly, with all due respect, other than Ed and Dan maybe Susan, I don’t know if there’s anybody else here who really knows the precise chemistry and biology of what’s going to be coming out of the sewage treatment plant, so let’s call a spade a spade.  Let’s have a public hearing, let the people come and speak and address hopefully relevant issues about the location of the treatment plant because that’s a wetland issue and let’s have a discussion about the wonderful design that Russ and Meg have accomplished and let’s move this along.  And, you know what, we’re all going to really wait and see what the DEC does because my client right now is at the mercy of getting a SPDES permit.  I know that.  Thankfully the Westchester County Department of Health thought that it was so important.  I’ve been doing this a long time, Steve, and I don’t get Lenny Meyerson to write a letter like this really unprompted where he writes to another agency and says “you know what: they are pumping, they’re averting problems right now, we’ve seen, we’ve been watching what they’ve been doing.  We’ve issued notices for them to deal with this and you know what it’s a priority item.”  I can’t get too many governmental bodies to call anything a priority.  

Mr. Steven Kessler responded you have enough architectural plans to tomorrow to send it to the review committee?

Mr. John Klarl stated for the façades.

Mr. David Steinmetz asked does that have to happen before the public hearing or is that a tag on?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m just saying, if you want to facilitate this then certainly the sooner they get involved the better off you are.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded let’s ask Russ.  If you want he’ll pull an all-nighter.

Mr. John Klarl asked early next week?

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I appreciate it.  I want to get you what you need.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m just trying to identify all the paths here to get to where you want to get to.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded you know what my frustration is Steve?  I thought I did everything I could to try to facilitate making sure you got everything you need and my frustration with my friend Ed is that I feel like somehow I came to this meeting not knowing at all.  It is what it is.  I put a lot of time and energy into this over the last two years.  Over the last year, we’ve been banging our heads against the wall of a septic system.  We’re trying to fix it.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked my question is do we start the process or not?

Ms. Susan Todd stated I think it should go through the regular channels. This is kind of game playing is very unsophisticated.

Mr. Robert Foley stated even if the public hearing advertised only on the sewer plant then what is this – this is on the agenda as we have said as a site development plan both for the sewer plant and the building.

Mr. Steven Kessler responded and they have no problem having a public hearing on both.  Right, is that correct David?

Mr. Robert Foley asked what happens if there are issues with the building part of it and the hearing isn’t closed?

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you agree that the public hearing would be on exactly as proposed on both the site development plan and the wetland and tree removal proposal.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated again, somehow Chris and I must have miscommunicated with one another and if that’s the case we’ll get past that.  There’s no question that the building for the sewage treatment plant is a new structure that needs a site plan approval.  I was discussing/debating with Mr. Kline on whether or not site plan is required to the fullest extent on a renovation, reconstruction based upon what I was educated about the Peckham situation.  But, we made an application as Mr. Kline pointed out to all of us for an amended site approval.  I know that, you know that you have the application.  We’ve paid the fee.  We did the whole thing.  Nobody’s trying to not have the advertisement on that.  Advertise it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked what’s your critical path on this?  Isn’t it getting the system ordered and installed?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded yes.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you’re proceeding down that road with DEC and the Department of Health to get the necessary approvals that you need, parallel to that we would be going along with whatever path we take here but when you’re comfortable enough that you’ve got the design and you’ve got the permit from the necessary agencies, you could place the order for that equipment without yet completing this process.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded oh, you’re predicate Tom, once we’re comfortable that we have all of the approvals.  You’re one of those approvals.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated exclusive of ours but in terms of – let me as a question if it’s located in a different place is it a different system, or is it just a matter of taking that package and putting it in another location?

Mr. David Steinmetz responded it’s going to be the same thing.  

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked so you order the equipment it can go anywhere?  So, you can go ahead and place that order with whoever you’re going to buy this from at the point in time that you have the necessary SPDES permit or whatever else you need?  Except from us.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I need to know.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated there’s a risk there but the wetlands permit is going to dictate where you put it.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded that’s correct.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated not what kind of plant you’re going to get.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated but most importantly it’s going to dictate whether we can put it.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I’m not saying it’s without risk.  I’m just saying, you want to cut corners, that’s one way of doing it.  We do projects all the time.  We order things before they’re even designed and then we move it along that way.  It gets done quicker.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated it’s easier to tell Mr. Capelli to go out and speculate.  You can’t tell that to a private non-for-profit religious education.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated decision time, let’s start with the easy motion. Mr. Foley?

Mr. Robert Foley stated Mr. Chairman I make a motion that we schedule the site visit for June 28th and at the same time declare ourselves as lead agency, seconded with all in favor saying “aye.”  

Mr. Steven Kessler stated now we’re down for public hearing decision for July.  Do we start the process or do we not start the process?  Understanding that we have no review memorandum or unlikely will have one long before the meeting.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked when is the last day we have to make a decision about the public hearing, when you have to advertise it?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded when you have to advertise it pretty early.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi asked like what a week from now, two weeks from now?  Is there a date that you could say we could reassess? 

Mr. Steven Kessler asked how many days in advance?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the public hearing sign which is not the ad, but the public hearing sign has to be up 21 days before the public hearing.  The ad has to go in approximately two weeks before the public hearing.

Mr. John Klarl stated June 15th.  You need to know by June 15th.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked have we decided as to who will be notified of the public hearing beyond what is required?  Should there be any additional notification beyond what is required in the regs?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I’d have to go back and check who we notified the first time.  We would notify everyone we notified the first time.  I think we notified more people than just the minimum.

Mr. John Klarl stated we went outside the usual geographical boundaries.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the contiguous properties.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated so what I was proposing is that if June 15th is the date that you have to make a decision to advertise it or not than we have until then to reassess the situations to whether or not there’s enough information to do a public hearing.

Mr. John Klarl stated what you would do you would make a motion to set up a public hearing subject to staff getting certain materials by a certain date.  But, you have to tell us what we’re doing. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated then you can get in touch with us on e-mail to call us at that point. 

Mr. John Klarl stated just tell us the status of what submissions have been made.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in other words make the motion here subject to not to do a motion.

Mr. John Klarl responded subject to receiving adequate material in order to go ahead with a review memo and a public hearing for July. 

Mr. David Steinmetz stated we would have no objection put the onus on us to satisfy, as Mr. Bianchi has creatively come up with a date of June 15th, or whatever the actual sufficient date so that they have time to notice.  The onus is on us to provide Mr. Vergano with this additional information that we’ll figure out what it is and the architectural information that was also requested and anything else that we think you need to properly identify the location and the nature of the sewage treatment plant, anything else on Dodge City and the full set of architecturals that Russ is not going to sleep until he’s got.

Mr. John Klarl stated but we have to make a motion tonight.  We can’t do it by e-mail.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I just want to check before we make that motion as to whether you think that you’d still have sufficient time to do that.

Mr. Ed Vergano responded if the Board is telling us to do it, we’ll try to make it happen.  I don’t know if we have sufficient time.

Mr. Robert Foley stated and then if they don’t, if we find out that they don’t, well it’s subject to so then that motion is.

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded no, no that motion is that they get the information and certainly David has said that he’s going to get that information.  The other issue is even having gotten the information would they have sufficient time?  It’s not like this is the only thing he does.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and if they don’t have sufficient time and they can’t do it then the motion is subject to becomes null and void that we made?

Mr. John Klarl responded it doesn’t go forward.  If you make a motion subject to a condition, the conditions comply with there’s a public hearing, the conditions do not comply with the public hearing is not scheduled by Chris.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the point that I’m raising is different than the one that Bob is suggesting.  Tom is suggesting that if David can get the information to Ed and his department quickly enough then everything would continue on and we’d have a public hearing in July, even if David and his staff can get together and give Ed and his staff that information the issue, for me, is whether even with that information they’d have sufficient time to sit down and review it and write up a memo and get to us so we get to, that’s a very short amount of time.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated and don’t close the public hearing in July if Mr. Vergano can’t complete his limited review which is limited to the location of the treatment plant and not the affluent discharge.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and the renovations.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated I’m not sure that there is.  We’re reducing the impermeable surface area.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but it’s up to him to make that determination.  He may have no comments but you can’t exclude him from looking at that.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded we haven’t.  we don’t want to exclude him, we haven’t excluded him, we’re not going to exclude him but Loretta’s point is a fair one if he hasn’t completed what he needs to do then you’re going to look at me on July 7th and you’re going to say “stop telling us to close the public hearing, we’re not going to do it.”  But, at least you will have opened the dialogue and let us start down the path which is…I know that I asked that I come here and I push and I ask you to do things that you may not want to do at times, but with all due respect, this one is not a big deal.  I’m asking to open a public hearing on a very limited defined application.  This one is I don’t drive home and think “boy I overstepped the line.”

Mr. Steven Kessler stated ostensibly that’s so and we really on staff to confirm that it is a limited application.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded and you know what, I relied on staff before I walked in here tonight and I really wish staff would have told me I was going to have a problem because my client has paid its fee and paid its application and sure paid its dues so I’m hoping that staff has figured out a way that they can make it happen.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I really don’t understand the tone there because you’ve been doing this long enough.  Of a hundred site plan applications that come in on May 22nd, how many are going to have a public hearing scheduled 10 days later?

Mr. Tim Miller stated Mr. Kline this is not like a 100 applications.  This is a school that’s in operation with 200 students, 200 families that are funding.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated and you’ll be pumping for six months.

Mr. Tim Miller continued we have a public health issue that’s taking place here.  We have the County Health Commissioner that said it’s a priority.  It’s a simple application.  We’re just asking you guys to work with us a little bit.  I can understand Mr. Steinmetz’s frustration.  I think you can too, Mr. Kessler, I don’t know why Mr. Kline has a question about this?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I think that’s unfair Tim.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated as someone pointed out to me Steve, if I wasn’t standing here in 07/09, maybe you could say to me “David, we’ve had so many applications in 2009, we’re going out the window on this stuff.”  This is the seventh application that’s been filed in the Town of Cortlandt Planning Board in the year 2009.  Come on guys, this is silly.  That’s my frustration because I’m a professional and I come here every month.  I’ve been here for 20 years.  I don’t lose it too often.  I’m really trying not to lose it.  I apologize if I’m at the edge, but I have, Ivan, really good reason to be frustrated.  Really good reason.

Mr. Robert Foley stated well there’s frustration here too because again, I brought it up before, all of the adjournments whether it was staff or you or a combination of.

Mr. David Steinmetz responded Bob, I adjourned so that I didn’t have to have you make a decision on Stephen’s Lane Bob.  That’s why I adjourned.

Mr. John Klarl asked what’s on the report on Stephen’s?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the sewer connection.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated that’s why I adjourned.

Mr. John Klarl asked is there a motion made?

Mr. Steven Kessler stated there’s no motion yet.  A lot of emotion, but no motion.  Let me try and bring this back.  In fairness, many people are seeing this for the first time on this Board and the experience here is that we’ve had an application for three years now.  That application, for lots of good reasons, and I’m not diminishing those good reasons, you know it’s been delayed, delayed, adjourned, adjourned on behalf of the applicant and we respect that and there’s been nothing forthcoming in all those adjournments until now when you come in with a new application.  I fully appreciate the reasons and that you may have now solved your problem and I understand the urgency of it with the letters from the Department of Health in Westchester.  I have no problem moving this thing forward but I don’t want anyone to presuppose that there’s a time limit or for you, David, to stand up here and say “by the way, did you know under the SEQRA rules you’re only allowed to have two public hearings on any application?”  I don’t want to hear that and I know somebody’s going to say that because that’s in fact what it says.  That’s not been the way this Board operates but that’s what it says.  I don’t want issues being made of technicalities if we were to go forward on this application to solve what seems to be an emergent problem that exists there.  I’m willing to proceed and I’m sure the public wants to have multiple opportunities to have their say about this on hopefully, as you put it, relevant issues as it relates to the Yeshiva.  I’m willing to go forward but understand we’ve got, with all due respect, give the staff time to do their work.  They’re professionals as you are.  We rely on them because, quite honestly, we’re not professionals, I don’t know if it shows but we’re not.  We need to rely on information and we rely on staff and consultants to the extent that they’re used on that information.  I’m willing to go forward but don’t put a time limit on us.  We’ll do it and we’ll be delivered hopefully be reasonable in that but I can’t predict how long this process is going to take.  I understand your representations that it’s in your mind, a simple, straightforward application of two or three elements and that may very well be true but you’ve been working on this many, many months, we’ve been working on it for an hour and a half.  We need time to catch up.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I would still propose that we make it subject to.

Mr. Robert Foley stated that would be the only thing that I can agree to.  I just don’t like the accusatory tone.  Way back when, Mr. Steinmetz, you may not have been there, I forgot who the engineers were, some of us at the site visit asked “why not a sewer plant?  How could that thing still be maintained, the septic?”  

Mr. Ivan Kline stated that’s the irony.  This very result was urged upon your client over a year ago and was resisted.  I understand why it was resisted, it’s costly.  But, now you’ve chosen this route and you’re trying to essentially impose upon us a burden that you’re facing because of not having chosen this route over a year ago.  Maybe that’s neither here nor there.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we also schedule a public hearing on July 7th subject on this application both elements of the application, all of the elements subject to, and John help me out here…
Mr. John Klarl stated subject to the applicant submitting to staff adequate materials so staff can evaluate the application for the public hearing, publish the public hearing and prepare an adequate review memo.

Mr. Robert Foley stated motion made, seconded.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated on the question, it sounds like you need to make sure you touch base with the departments here to see exactly what they need so that they can do what they need to do.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated assuming Ed is still speaking to me.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the third point of your motion what was that?  

Mr. Steven Kessler responded no it’s not on the motion all I’m saying is that they need to get together with Ed, quickly…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated no John, the three things, the third thing.

Mr. John Klarl responded I didn’t write anything yet.  I said first to submit adequate materials to staff to get ready for a public hearing, 2) to publish the public hearing and 3) to evaluate the application in terms of a review memo all to be done by June 15th.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked but it subject to them, I thought I heard you say, being able to do that.  It is what you’re saying?

Mr. John Klarl stated I think so.  I didn’t write it down.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think the point is we would reserve the right, if he can’t do it and if it’s not working out, there’s no public hearing. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it’s subject to you being able to do this. 

Mr. John Klarl stated staff with all the lynch pin.

Mr. Robert Foley stated by this motion we’re supporting what was just said. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we’ve delegated that to them.

Mr. Tim Miller asked can I just suggest that adequate materials to staff and to the satisfaction of staff and publication be the criteria for this condition? I think to give adequate materials to staff and then expect staff to review it and write a memo before this publication is not going to happen.  But, they certainly would then have a memo for you for the public hearing which is very common for staff so that you have the benefit of that and can ask questions.

Mr. Ed Vergano stated that’s fine but we’ll tell you what that adequate information is though.

Mr. Tim Miller stated so the first two make a lot of sense, the third I would be concerned about because I think that you’re putting…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t buy that.  I don’t understand what he’s talking about.  There’s three simple things.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated all they’re saying is give them the materials but they may produce the review the memorandum on the 20th or the 21st of the month.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes because your motion is requiring us to do the review memo by June 15th.

Mr. John Klarl stated I said they to give you adequate materials to prepare a review memo.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so if they issue and we get it in our packets on June the 30th for the July 7th meeting, that would be okay?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated which would be similar to what happened with Holy Spirit.  You got a review memo in your packet, now that was a different type of application.

Mr. John Klarl stated Mr. Steinmetz realizes that you’re on a tight time line since it’s now June 3rd and June 15th is only 12 days away.  

Ms. Susan Todd stated on the question I’m going to be voting no against this.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated so we’re on the question all in favor “aye,” those opposed, we have to poll the Board.

Mr. Chris Kehoe asked Mr. Kline; aye, Mr. Bianchi; aye, Chairman Kessler; aye, Ms. Taylor; no, Ms. Todd; no, Mr. Foley; aye. Four to two.

Mr. David Steinmetz stated thank you all for your patience.

Mr. Ivan Kline stated I make a motion to adjourn.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated 11:34 p.m.
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